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Chairman's Statement
FEHREE

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The Group's revenue for the first time exceeded one billion.
Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2004 was 56.9%
higher than the previous year, and was approximately
HK$1,113,048,000.

The substantial increase in revenue generated an annual profit
alfributable to shareholders of approximately HK$150,494,000,
which was a marked turn-around after a loss of approximately

HK$72,937,000 in 2003,

The performance of InfoNews continued to be encouraging,
with revenue for 2004 reaching approximately HES189, 768,000,
which was a dramatic jump from approximately HK$26,873,000
it made during 2003.

The Board recommended a final dividend of HK$0.01 per
share.

RESULTS

This year represented a dramatic turn-around for the Phoenix
Group. The Group's revenue for 2004 increased 56.9% over
that of 2003 to approximately HK$1,113,048,000, The growth
in advertising revenue, which represented over 90% of the
Group's total revenue, was the major contributor. Profit
attributable to shareholders reached a record high of
approximately HK$150,494,000. Operating costs increased
by 22.2% to approximately HKEG74,512,000, mainly as a
consequence of the increase in commission expensas incurred
by the substantial rise in advertising revenue.

The Group's profit from operations and profit attributable to
shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2004 were
approximately HKF138,536,000 and HKE150,494,000
respectively. Compared to same period of 2003, there were
significant improvements of approximately HK$226,443,000
and HK$223,431,000 respectively.

The chart of results presented below compares the performance
of the year ended 31 December 2004 with that of the same
period of 2003 in order to give a clearer picture of the overall
trend of the Group's operations.
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Year ended 31 December
BE+-—RA=1+—Hi¥Nk

2004 2003
—BROF —EF=F
HK$'000F #x HKS000F #
Phoenix Chinese Channel ERLEAR AP 828,042 605,446
Phoenix InfoNews Channel LR ok R 189,768 26,873
Phoenix Movies Channel, ER&SBEEs -
Phoenix North America Chinese Channel & EEHARENER
Phoenix Chinese Mews and Entertainment Channel ERARECH & 54,328 53,514
Other businesses 14 fh 5 B 40,910 73,554
Group's total revenue A A 1,113,048 708,387
Profit / (Loss) from operations SRR T /(SR 138,536 (87,907)
Profit / (Loss) attributable to shareholders o T AT (NS ) 150,494 (72,937)
Earnings / (Loss) per share, Hong Kong cents HRTEF / (RHE) - AL 3.05 (1.47)
BUSINESS OVERVIEW AND PROSPECTS KBEMERZ

2004 was a remarkably successful year for the Phoenix Group.
The Group's annual revenue exceeded one billion Hong Kong
dollars for the first time in the company's history, and at the
same time was able to keep operating costs under tight control,
leading to a substantial profit of approximately 150 million Hong
Kong dollars. After two consecutive loss-making years this was
an exceptional performance, and the Board believes that this
parformance is set to be continued over the coming twelve-
month period. Therefore, the Directors recommend a final
dividend of HK$0.01 per share. No dividend has previously
ever been declared or paid by the Company.

One of the main factors behind the Group's success during
2004 was the introduction of a new multi-agency advertising
sales system, which allowed advertising agencies across China
to market advertising on behalf of Fhoenix, This new system
has produced a much more dynamic and comprehensive
network of advertising agencies with an interest in marketing
Phoenix, with the consequence that advertising sales have
grown at a rapid rate.

Ancther major driver behind this exceptional outcome was the
rising fortunes of InfoMNews, which in 2003 generated less than
4% of the Group's total income, but which in 2004 contributed
17% of the Group's total income. When it was established in
2001 InfoMews was a serious slrain on the Group's linancial
situation, but in the less than two years since it was granted
landing rights in mainland China InfoNews has more or less
reached the break-even point. The new advertising sales system
has undoubtedly contributed to this turmn-around in InfoMews'
financial performance, but another major factor has been the
growing recognition by the Chinese television audience that
InfoMews offers by far the most comprehensive news sanvice
available in Mandarin Chinese, not only in mainland China but
also in other parts of the globe.
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Chairman's Statement ¥ /EHRE R

During 2004 InfoMNews was among the forefront of international
television news agencies reporting on global events. InfoNews
provided a steady stream of reporting on the continued fighting
in Irag, the Israeli/Palestine dispute and the death of Arafat;
it covered the tragic Bislan massacre in Russia with reporters
on the spot who followed events from close quarters as they
unfolded; and extensive coverage of the United States
presidential elections. InfoMNews also provided comprehensive
coverage of regional developments of direct interest to the
Greater China region: it featured the Taiwan presidential election,
including the assassination attempt on Chen Shui-bian and
the live broadcast of his inauguration; it also followed the Morth
Korean nuclear issue and the Six-Party Talks, and had an
exclusive interview with United States Secretary of State Colin
Powell during his visit to Beijing last October.

Phoenix Chinese Channel remained the Group's flagship, and
continued to generate the bulk of the Group's income. It
maintained the Phoenix tradition of innovative programming,

and remained at the cutting edge of the increasingly competitive
mainland Chinese television market. During 2004 Phoenix

Chinese Channel had considerable success with a series of
documentaries, some on historical themes and others focusing
on contemporary issues such as AIDS, which were able to
attract considerable advertising revenue. Phoenix Chinese
Channel once again staged the Miss Chinese Cosmos Pageant,
which was held in Hong Kong in November, with contestants
coming from all over the world.,

The success of both Phoenix Chinese and InfoNews reflects
a substantial growth in awareness of the Phoenix brand name.
This in turn has helped to boost the popularity of the Group's
international channels, the Phoenix Morth America Chinese
Channel and the Phoenix Chinese News and Entertainment
Channel covering the United States and Europe respectively.
The growth of brand name awareness has also been augmented
by the Phoenix website, which has been identified by Internet
Weekly, China's leading internet magazine as one of the five
maost influential websites in China. Phoenix Website has
an average daily consolidated page view of approximately
15,000,000 and an average daily visitor number of approximately
1,200,000 and has provided content for various value-added
services such as short message service (SMS) and multi-media
service (MMS). The Phoenix Weekly magazine, which features
arlicles on a wide variely of subjects, s available in both Hong
Kong and mainland China and more than 2,000,000 copies
were sold in 2004, Phoenix Weekly is part of the inflight
magazines of the major airlines operating in mainland China,
including Dragonair and China Southern Airlines.
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Phoenix's global reach has also continued to expand, with
InfoMews officially launch in the United States, Malaysia and
Singapore. Phoenix has also greatly strengthened its position
in Hong Kong as Phoenix Chinese Channel and InfoNews are
now available on almost all the main pay TV broadcasting media
operaling in the Special Administrative Region.

The Group is also looking for ways to take advantage of the
new technologies that are now becoming available for carmying
television programming. At present InfoMNews is available on
3G in Hong Kong and Phoenix is exploring the potential to
establish arrangements with 3G mobile phone operators, internet
protocol television broadeasters as well as broadband operators
to carry Phoenix programming in other places, The Group is
also considering taking advantage of the new regulations that
have been issued by the Chinese authorities, allowing foreign
invastors to hold up to 49 % of programme-production
companies.

The management is very optimistic about the Group's prospects
for the coming year. The new adverlising markeling syslem

shows every indication of continuing to generate a high level
of income, and InfoMews' performance in 2004 underscores
that it is well equipped to win an ever larger audience in
mainland China and beyond.

Finally, | would like to acknowledge the enormous contribution
that the staff of Phoenix has made to the Group's success in
2004, The hard work, team spirit and creativity that the staff
has collectively displayed has been an essential factor in last
year's performance. | would also like to acknowledge the
courage that our reporting teams have some times had to
display when reporting from war Zones or scenes of violence,
such as Bislan at the time of the massacre there. The courage
of these men and women representing Phoenix has enabled
to group to be at the forefront of global media organisations
reporting on international crises and conflicts.

LIU, Changle
Chairman

Hong Kong, 10 March 2005
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Global Media Organisation !

Phoenix Movies
Lo}
10
Phoenix has extended its reach globally. Today, the 'Chinese connection’ enables communities around the world to access LR Rk
Mandarin news and entertainment programmes. The dynamism of this massive market, combined with successful expansion HEE - THEE
strategies, has allowed Phoenix to develop a comprehensive multi-channel platform. Today, Phoenix Chinese, Phoenix Movies, LR HR M £

Phoenix InfoMews, Phoenix Chinese Mews and Entertainment and Phoenix North America Chinese channels together broadcast
to audiences in the Asia Pacific, as well as in Europe, North America and North Africa, covering more than 100 countries
and regions. The mission of the group is to offer varied, high-guality content to the global Chinese population.
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Phoenix Movies Channel Phoenix Chinese Channel Phoenix MA Chinese Channel Phoenix InfoMews Channel Phoenix CHE Channel
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Global Outlook



Phoenix broadcasts the world's top stories, providing its audience with
real-time reporting and in-depth commentary from correspondents in
major world centers like Washington, New York, Los Angeles, London,
Moscow and Sydney as well as across the expanse of the Greater
Chinese world, from Beijing to Shenzhen and Hong Kong to Taipei.
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A Global Team & B [@ B
The Mainland = = A p&




To fulfill its role as a global broadcasting service, Phoenix
has a team of presenters and reporters drawn from
mainland China, Taiwan, and Hong Kong as well as from
the global Chinese community.

The core of the Phoenix team is drawn from the four comers
of the: Chinese mainland, from regional centers such as Lanzhou,
Fuzhou and Xjamen as well as from cities like Beijing, Shanghai
and Guangzhou.

Many of Phoenix's presenters and reparters, like Chen Luyu,
Dou Wentao, Olivia Xu, Chen Xiaonan, Lugiu Luwei, and Li Wai
have impressive educational qualifications and extensive
professional experience on the mainkand before joining Phoenix.
Today they are household names across Chinese world.
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A Global Team & B [ B3

Taiwan &2




Some of the most popular Phoenix presenters come from
Taiwan, winning fans across the Chinese-speaking world. The
talented group of presenters, including Tiger Hu, Sally Wu,
Avon Hsigh, Vie Tseng, Alice Wang, and Chiang Shengyang,
have become well-known to the global Chinese-speaking
audience after joining the ranks of Phoenix,
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A Global Team & ER B [
Hong Kong & # The Rest of the World B R




With its headgquarters in Hong Kong, Phoenix has a strong
contingent of reporters, presenters and cameramen who ariginate
from Hong Kong and who bring an expertise in Hong Kong
affairs and the international environment to Phoenix
programming and productions.

The Phoenix team also includes key players who have
close ties with the rest of the world, having worked,
studied or acquired citizenship in Australia, Canada, and
the United States.
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The Chinese Gateway

While InfoMews is the principal source of televised news and information for the Chinese audience, Phoenix Chinese Channel
iz at the cutting edge of television entertainment in China, and features a rich array of talk shows, variety programming, and
mini-series that have a faithful audience in China's cities. The Phoenix Weekly Magazine and the Phoenix Website reinforce
the appeal of the Chinese Channel, and combine to provide advertisers with an integrated and multi-media platform for building
awareness and increasing the mind share of their brands in today's media-savwy China.
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The Chinese Gateway

22

As the premier source of news and information on world events for Chinese-speaking communities globally, Phoenix InfoNews
provides a perfect vehicle for foreign business leaders and political leaders to communicate with the huge audience in mainland
China, including many key decision-makers in both government and commerce,
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MARCH_=A

Liu Changle and Rupert
Murdoch, the founders of the
ariginal joint venlure company
that established Phoenix
Television, took part in a televised
dialogue in Los Angeles to mark
Phoenix's eighth anniversary and
discuss their respective
approaches to the global media
business.
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Phoenix held its Eighth
Anniversary Celebration in Kuala
Lumpur, where the former
Malaysian Prime Minister Dr
Mahathir was the guest of
honour.
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AUGUST_AR

Fhoenix InfoNews began to
broadcast over the SMATV
system in Hong Kong, the first
step in a process of enlarging
the Fhoenix footprint in Hong
Kong as, over the following
months, Phoenix channels
became available on PCCW's
now TV, iCable, Galaxy TV, and
Broadband TV.
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AUGUST_AR

The yacht Albatross, renamed
the Phoenix in Chinese, received
a rousing welcome in Malaysia,
as it made its way to Kenya,
following the course taken by the
Ming Dynasty Chinese admiral,
Cheng He, whao sailed from China
to Africa.
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SEPTEMBER_AhA

Moscow-based Phoenix reporter
Lu Yfuguang caught the attention
of the global Chinese television
audience by his reporting on the
Bislan massacre in southern
Russia.
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SEPTEMBER_HIRA

Phoenix InfoNews began to
broadcast in Morth America on
a direct-to-home television
systemn. Former State Councilor
Qian Qichen attended the
opening ceremony in Mew York.
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OCTOBER_+A

The United States Secretary of
State Colin Fowell was
interviewed by Phoenix chiefl
commentator Anthony Yuen in
Beijing during the course of an
official visit to China just days
before the United States
Presidential election.
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OCTOBER_+A

United Mations Secretary
General, Kofi Annan, was
interviewed by Anthony Yuen
during the Global AIDS summit
in Bangkok.
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Movember_+—A

The final of the Miss Chinese
Cosmos beauty pageant was held
in Hong Kong, with the three top
place getters coming from
Malaysia, Canada, and Beijing.
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Movember_-+—#8

The Chairman and CEQ of
Phoenix, Liu Changle, was
appointed the Chairman of the
International Committee of the
International Television Acadenmy,
which sponsors the international
Emmy awards as a way lo
encourage excellence in
television broadcasting.
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To facilitate better understanding of the Group’s performance,

the comparison presented below covered the year ended 31
December 2004 and 31 December 2003 (unaudited).

COMMENTS ON SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The table below shows the comparison of operating results of
our businesses for the year ended 31 December 2004 and
2003 respectively.

RENETHRAEENRE - TX2FIHILER
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Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=t—HLEE

2004 2003

—TEWF ZER=F

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET FET

(Unaudited)

(REEEIZ)

Phoenix Chinese Channel BEREXE 324,302 185,452

Phoenix InfoNews Channel J—LJﬁlﬁiﬂﬂﬁuﬂ a (3,493) (110,159)
Phoenix Movies Channel, Phoenix North J—Uﬁlﬁﬂﬂ

America Chinese Channel & Phoenix Chinese @ﬂﬁ%J & &

News and Entertainment Channel HJEWQT BUM & (53,082) (49,412)
Other businesses H ¥R (543) (14,733)
Corporate overheads SERTHEZE (128,648) (99,055)
Profit/(Loss) from operations BT (B518) 138,536 (87,907)

Revenues from television broadcasting, comprising of both
advertising and subscription revenues, which accounted for
96.3% of the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31
December 2004, increased by 56.3% to approximately
HK$1,072,138,000 (year ended 31 December 2003:
HK$685,834,000). The segmental result for television
broadcasting recorded a profit of approximately
HK$274,477,000 for the same year (year ended 31 December
2003: HK$24,221,000).

Revenue from the Group’s flagship channel, Phoenix Chinese
Channel, which accounted for 74.4% of the Group’s total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2004, increased
satisfactorily by 36.8% to approximately HK$828,042,000
(year ended 31 December 2003: HK$605,446,000).

REBREFEHRA (BREES RBREKRA)
+FF56.3%%F#471,072,138,0008 T (B E ==
T=F+-_A=+—HILFE : 685,834,000/%
) EEE—EENSE+ A=+ —HILFE
HZAREBEUA6.3%  B—FEREIREE
DRBRBESSR AN K 274,477,000 T (HE=
TE=F+_A=F+—HIFE : 24,221,000
/%7'5)

REAEERERAE — BEARTXA Hﬁudz
A _EF+36.8%ZE#1828,042,0007%8 7T (B =
E=F+_A=+—HLFE: 605446000;%
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Having strengthened programming and placed greater
emphasis on viewership expansion, Phoenix InfoNews
Channel’s revenue increased dramatically. Its revenue was
about seven times that of the previous year, jumping to
approximately HK$189,768,000 (year ended 31 December
2003: HK$26,873,000). The operating loss was largely
reduced by 96.8% to approximately HK$3,493,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2004 (year ended 31 December
2003: HK$110,159,000).

Phoenix Chinese Channel’s revenue maintained its healthy
growth, whilst Phoenix InfoNews Channel's revenue grew from
last year's 3.8% of the Group’s total revenue to this year’s
17.0%. Furthermore, Phoenix InfoNews Channel’s
performance improved substantially, and was almost breaking
even in just 24 months after PRC landing rights were granted.

Revenue of Phoenix North America Chinese Channel and
Phoenix Chinese News and Entertainment Channel maintained
steady growth, though this increase in revenue was offset by
the decrease in the revenue of Phoenix Movies Channel due
to the termination of the minimum guarantee arrangement
with an agent in the PRC for this channel.

Revenue from programme production and ancillary services
improved steadily to approximately HK$27,219,000, which
included intra-group sales of approximately HK$23,812,000,
for the year ended 31 December 2004 (year ended 31
December 2003: total revenue — HK$23,075,000; intra-group
sales — HK$18,725,000). Segmental results for programme
production and ancillary services hence recorded a profit of
approximately HK$1,733,000 for the year, as compared with
a loss of approximately HK$3,313,000 in the previous year.

The performance of the internet services improved
satisfactorily for the past year. Segmental loss for the internet
services was approximately HK$2,450,000 for the year ended
31 December 2004 (year ended 31 December 2003:
HK$9,441,000), representing a decrease of 74.0% as
compared with the previous year. This reduction in loss was
mainly attributable to the increase in income from the success
in exploring new revenue sources.

Other activities, which included advertising & subscription
revenue from the Phoenix Weekly magazine and handling
income from television subscriptions, contributed marginally
to the Group for the year ended 31 December 2004.

BEE SR ED B AR KRB ABIRIEF %SRBI
BEAHE  BEAREMNAEMEAD KR L
F+ o ZABEMU AR ZE49189,768,0007 7T
(BE—ZEZT=F+_A=+—RHIEE :
26,873,000 7T) + AEFWRALLE - HEZ
TENE+ - A=+—HILFENKLEHEAR
&R 4>96.8% £ 473,493,000 8 T (B E —TF
=F+ZA=+—HIFE : 110,159,000
JT) °
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Increase of corporate overheads was mainly attributable to
the increase in staff costs and additional expenditure on
promotional events and marketing activities.

Please refer to note 2 to the accounts for a detailed analysis
on segmental information and the television broadcasting
section under the “Business Overview” in this report for
commentary on our core business.

DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved to recommend a final dividend of
HK$0.01 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2004 (2003: Nil). Upon approval by the shareholders, the
final dividend will be paid on or about 8 July 2005 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 23 June 2005.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Pursuant to an agreement dated 29 October 2003 entered
into by the Phoenix Group and Oasiscity Limited (“Oasiscity”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Neo-China Group (Holdings)
Limited (formerly known as “Neo-Tech Global Limited”), the
shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, Oasiscity acquired 60% interest in Phoenix Real
Properties Limited (“Real Properties”), which owns 90% interest
in FIIBLEE ZAFR A R The acquisition was completed on
13 January 2004.

On the same date, Oasiscity executed a share charge in favour
of the Phoenix Group, under which it charged 30% equity
interest in Real Properties, as security for the due performance
of its obligations under the agreement dated 29 October 2003.
Pursuant to the agreement, Oasiscity will be responsible for
providing all required financing for the development of the
building and the Phoenix Group is not required to provide
any further financing for the development of the building but
will be entitled to a relevant portion of the non-saleable area.

On 5 August 2004, the Group entered into an agreement with
1t R EHEA 7 to form a sino-foreign joint venture, 3t R [F
E&EE A AT, in the PRC. The joint venture will focus
on developing advertising businesses in radio broadcasting
industry. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group shall inject
approximately HK$12,900,000 (equivalent to
RMB13,500,000) for a 45% shareholding in this joint venture,
of which HK$11,500,000 (equivalent to RMB12,000,000)
shall be paid within three months from the date of issue of the
business license of the joint venture and the remaining amount
shall be paid within thirty-six months from the said date. The
business license of the joint venture was issued in January
2005 and HK$11,500,000 was paid by the Group in January
2005.

SETTES BN - FEHPE TRAEN -
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& o
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—ERRFARAZT=BRIRRAFTRRERL
HEIAIR -
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M HEEHEBRAOasiscity Limited
([Oasiscity ) R=FE=F+A =+ NH:L
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(TREE]) (HEEXYIEEEZEBRA R
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Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies during the year ended 31 December 2004.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The liquidity and financial resources of the Group as at 31
December 2004 were similar to those of the Group as at 31
December 2003. The aggregate outstanding borrowings of
the Group as at 31 December 2004 were approximately
HK$8,085,000 (as at 31 December 2003: HK$9,982,000),
representing current accounts with related companies which
were unsecured and non-interest bearing. Such minor
fluctuation was within the normal pattern of operations of the
Group.

The gearing ratio of the Group, based on total liabilities to
shareholders’ equity, was 24.6% as at 31 December 2004
(as at 31 December 2003: 23.4%). Accordingly, the financial
position of the Group has remained very liquid.

As most of the Group’s monetary assets are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi, with minimal
balances in UK pounds and Taiwan dollars, the exchange rate
risks of the Group is considered to be minimal.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2004, deposits of approximately
HK$3,700,000 (as at 31 December 2003: HK$3,400,000)
were pledged with a bank to secure a banking guarantee given
to the landlord of a subsidiary.

Other than the above, the Group did not have any charge on
its assets as at 31 December 2004 and 31 December 2003.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2004, other than the
exercise of share options granted (detail as per note 23 to the
accounts), there is no change in the Company’s share capital.
As at 31 December 2004, the Group’'s operations were
financed mainly by shareholders’ equity.

STAFF

As at 31 December 2004, the Group employed 624 full time
staff (as at 31 December 2003: 597), at market remuneration
with employee benefits such as comprehensive medical
coverage, insurance plan, defined contribution pension
schemes, discretionary bonus and employee share option
scheme. Staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2004
was approximately HK$220,798,000 (six months ended 31
December 2003: HK$99,672,000).
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The Group did not experience any significant labour disputes
or substantial change in the number of its employees that led
to the disruption of its normal business operations. The
Directors consider the Group’s relationship with its employees
to be good.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2004, the Group invested in some unlisted
security with an estimated fair value of approximately
HK$53,461,000 (as at 31 December 2003: Nil).

Save as disclosed above, the Group has not held any significant
investment for the year ended 31 December 2004.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND EXPECTED SOURCE OF FUNDING

The Group will continue to consolidate its existing businesses
while exploring new business areas that will complement and
enhance its existing businesses.

Other than disclosed herein, the Group did not have any plan

for material investments and acquisition of material capital
assets.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Other than disclosed in note 29 to the accounts, the Group
had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2004
and 31 December 2003 respectively.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. LIU, Changle, aged 53, appointed on 2 February 2000,
is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. LIU graduated from the Beijing Broadcasting Institute in
the early 1980s and joined China Central People’s Radio
Station, with which he has held over the years the positions of
reporter, editor, news commentator and senior management,
and participated in the reporting and commentary of a number
of important national occasions and events.

Mr. LIU’s PRC domestic and overseas investments include
broadcasting, petroleum, infrastructure construction, real
estate development, trading and cultural businesses.

On 31 March 1996, Mr. LIU, through Today’s Asia Limited,
which is 93.3% owned by him, together with Satellite Television
Asian Region Limited and China Wise International Limited,
jointly founded Phoenix Satellite Television Company Limited
(“Phoenix Satellite TV"). He became and remains the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of
Phoenix.

Mr. LIU, Changle gained widespread accreditations from local
and overseas for his enthusiasm and achievement in the media
industry. In the January 2000 issue of the “Voices of China”
monthly magazine, Mr. LIU was selected as one of the top ten
personalities of the “Voices of China 1999”.

In August 2000, #1#1E E%R of Taiwan, Ming Pao of Hong
Kong and Hong Kong Metro Broadcast Corporation Limited
jointly held a survey of “Power 50 Year 2000”. Mr. LIU ranked
78 among the 150 nominated candidates from the Greater
China region.

In December 2000, Mr. LIU was selected as “Intellect of the
Media” in the “Top Ten Pairs in Focus 2000” election
organized by A Bl 38k = E FChinanews (F B3 &
F), operated by China News Services (3 B B4t ).

In June 2001, Mr. LIU was ranked 17th of Asia’s most
influential communicators in “The Power 50 2001” survey
organized by Asia Week. Mr. LIU was also listed in the “Man
of the Cover in the 21st Century Award” (21142 SHE AYD)
jointly organised by United Nations Development Programme,
Proverty Reduction Office of the State Council (5 7Bz k8
#%) and Hong Kong Commercial Daily.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. LIU, Changle received the Robert Mundell Successful World
CEO Award, an award named after the Nobel Prize winning
economist, Professor Robert Mundell, “Father of Euro”, by
“leaders of the global Chinese television program providers” (&
HEZBHEE BIRERHNEZEE ) in May 2004. At the
Singapore Asia-Pacific Overseas Chinese Commercial Leaders
Forum in June 2004, Mr. LIU, Changle together with Mr. LI, Ka-
Shing + Mr. KUOK, Hock Mien and 3R3w#{ were amongst the
30 shortlisted Chinese leaders and they were also honoured with
the “2004 Most Creative Asia-Pacific Overseas Chinese Business
Leader Award”. In the most outstanding CEQ in the China region
2004 campaign, organized by an association of the world CEO
“Association of Intemational CEOs” in March 2005, Mr. LIU
Changle was selected as top ten outstanding CEQ.

Mr. LIU, Changle was appointed to the board of directors of
Nanjing University in December 2003, and is an honorary
visiting professor at the Communication University of China
and at Tianjin’s Nankai University. He is also Cultural Adviser
to the Tianjin Municipal Government, Adviser on Foreign
Economic Cooperation to the Heboi Provincial Government,
and vice chairman of the Outstanding Chinese Fund.

Mr. LIU, Changle was appointed a Justice of the Peace by the
government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
in July 2004.

Mr. LIU, Changle is one of the substantial shareholders of the
Asia Television Limited and he is also a member of the
International Board of the US National Academy of Television
Arts and Sciences. He was appointed the Chairman of both
the 2005 and 2006 iEMMYs Festival by the International
Academy of Television Arts & Sciences on 22 Nov 2004.

On 1 March, 2005, Mr. LIU, Changle was appointed as
Member of the Tenth National Committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (FR Bl A RBUAT & 5
TEZ2EZE®) .

Mr. CHUI, Keung, aged 53, appointed on 5 June 2000, is the
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. Mr. CHUI graduated from the department of
journalism of Fudan University in Shanghai and served in the
China Central People’s Radio Station for over 10 years. Since
the establishment of Phoenix on 31 March 1996, he has been
in charge of the overall daily operations, the public relations
and promotion strategies of Phoenix, and the coordination of
the relationships with PRC government entities. He also assists
in establishing and implementing the corporate development
strategies of the Company.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Non-Executive Directors

Throughout the term of office with the Phoenix Group, Mr.
CHUI has been instrumental in Phoenix’s PRC domestic
business development, programme production, advertising
operation, marketing network and public relations. In 1996,
he was in charge of the production of “Flying over the Yellow
River”, a major television programme of Phoenix, which
achieved popular success and heightened the popularity of
Phoenix in the PRC and overseas Chinese communities.

Prior to joining Phoenix, Mr. CHUI was a Director and the
general manager of Tianhua International Culture and Art
Company Limited in Beijing focusing on developing various
cultural, arts and publication businesses.

Ms GUTHRIE, Michelle LEE, aged 39, appointed as director
of the Company on 31 July 2003, is the Chief Executive Officer
of STAR. She joined STAR in June 2000. Before that, she was
Director of Legal and Business Affairs at FOXTEL from 1998
to 2000, responsible for all legal and business development
functions. Before FOXTEL, Ms GUTHRIE was corporate
counsel in London for News International plc and British Sky
Broadcasting Limited. Ms GUTHRIE has extensive pay-
television experience in Asia, Australia and Europe. She
graduated from the University of Sydney with Bachelor of Arts
and Bachelor of Laws (Hons) degrees.

Mr LAU, Yu Leung, John, aged 42, appointed on 5 June 2000,
holds the position of Chief Financial Officer and Executive
Vice President, Business Development of STAR. Mr LAU has
overall responsibility for all financial matters of STAR, including
corporate strategy, management and financial reporting,
internal audit, treasury and tax. In addition, he heads the
business development division, identifying and developing
growth opportunities for the company.

Prior to joining STAR, Mr LAU was the Chief Financial Officer
of San Miguel Brewing International Ltd, responsible for the
company’s financial operations throughout Asia Pacific.

Before this role, Mr LAU also held senior financial positions at
GE Information Services, Philip Morris Asia Inc and Deloitte &
Touche in Los Angeles, USA.

Mr LAU graduated from Brigham Young University in Utah in
August 1988, with a Master’s degree in Accountancy and
Information Systems and a Bachelor of Science degree in
Accounting. He is a member of the California Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. CHEUNG, Chun On, Daniel, aged 45, is Executive Vice
President of STAR, News Corporation’s Asian satellite television
and multi-media services. He is also Chief Operating Officer
of China Network Systems, a joint venture between STAR and
the Koos Group in Taiwan, responsible for managing Koos’
cable systems, their upgrade and digitization processes.

Before assuming his present positions, Mr. CHEUNG was
General Manager of STAR in Taiwan overseeing advertising
sales, subscription television service and television program
production. He was previously Deputy Regional Director for
Greater China, responsible for distribution and marketing in
the market.

Mr. CHEUNG graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic in
Electronic Engineering. Before joining STAR in 1991, he was
the technical consultant of The Hong Kong Telecom for the
Global Virtual Private Network.

Mr. XU, Gang, aged 47, is a Non-Executive Director of the
Company since 13 November 2000. Mr. XU has extensive
experience in banking and investment. He was the Deputy
Chief Executive Officer of BOC International Holdings Limited
(“BOCI”) and the Chairman of a number of subsidiary
companies of BOCI. Currently, he is the Director and Chief
Executive Officer of Bank of China Group Investment Limited
(“BOCGI”) and director of a number of companies controlled
by BOCGI or in which BOCGI has an interest.

Mr. CHEUNG, San Ping, aged 49, appointed on 2 January
2001 as a Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
CHEUNG has extensive experience in trading.

Mr. CHEUNG graduated from Xian Political Academy of China
(R EIP ZEAZE) and Senior Research Studies for Chief
Executives of Business Centre of Peking University (4652 A
B2 R LNAR S B AHED) . He was awarded Master Degree
in Business Administration from Macao University of Science
and Technology. Before joining Phoenix, he was the project
managing director of Sinochem Corporation and Today’s Asia
Limited. He has extensive experience in project investment,
trading and management.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. LO, Ka Shui, aged 58, appointed on 5 June 2000, is the
Deputy Chairman and Managing Director of Great Eagle
Holdings Limited. He is a Non-executive Director of The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited,
Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited and China Mobile (Hong
Kong) Limited. He is also a Director of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited (also a past chairman of the listing
committees of the Main Board and Growth Enterprise Market),
a Vice President of The Real Estate Developers Association of
Hong Kong, a Trustee of the Hong Kong Centre for Economic
Research, a member of the Council of Advisors on Innovation
and Technology and a member of the Airport Authority, and a
past chairman of the Hospital Authority. He graduated with a
Bachelor of Science degree from McGill University and M.D.
from Cornell University. He is certified in Cardiology. He has
more than 25 years’ experience in property and hotel
development and investment both in Hong Kong and overseas.

Mr. KUOK, Khoon Ean, aged 49, appointed on 5 June 2000,
has been with the KUOK Group since 1978 and is the
Chairman of SCMP Group Limited. He is a Director of Kerry
Holdings Limited and Kerry Group Limited. He is also a Director
of a number of publicly listed companies in Malaysia and
Singapore. He graduated from Nottingham University, United
Kingdom with a Bachelor's degree in Economics.

Mr. LEUNG, Hok Lim, aged 69, is a fellow member of CPA
Australia, a member of the Macau Society of Certified
Practising Accountants, a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member
of the taxation institute of Hong Kong. Mr. LEUNG is the
founding and senior partner of PKF, Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. LEUNG obtained his fellowship with Institute
of Certified Public Accountants in 1973. He is a non-executive
director of Beijing Hong Kong Exchange of Personnel Centre
Limited. Mr. LEUNG is the independent non-executive director
of a number of listed companies namely Yangtzekiang Garment
Manufacturing Company Limited, YGM Trading Limited, S E
A Holdings Limited, Bright International Group Limited, Fujian
Holdings Limited and High Fashion International Limited.

Alternate Director

Mr. GONG, Jianzhong, aged 42, is an Alternate Director to
Mr. XU Gang, Non-executive Director of the Company, since
18 April 2001. Mr. GONG has extensive experience in banking
and investment. He was the Head of Bank of China, Shao
Yang Branch. Currently, he is the Deputy CEO of BOCGI and
director of a number of companies controlled by BOCGI or in
which BOCGI has an interest.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Senior Management

Mr. LEUNG, Noong Kong, aged 56, currently holds the
position of Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
Mr. LEUNG had been instrumental in the setting up of the
Phoenix Group and has been part of its senior management
team ever since its inception. His primary responsibilities
include the supervision of the day-to-day operations of the
Phoenix Group, the establishing of management structures
pertaining to the evolving operations of the Phoenix Group, as
well as the mapping out of strategies, in conjunction with the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company, for the business
development of the Phoenix Group. Mr. LEUNG joined Satellite
Television Asian Region Limited in 1991. From 1991 to 1995,
he was involved in various tasks relating to the development
of STAR’s business in the Greater China region. He also played
a pivotal role in the launching of STAR Chinese Channel and
STAR Movies Channel in 1991 and 1993 respectively.
Following the formation of Phoenix Satellite TV, Mr. LEUNG
was again instrumental in the launching of the Phoenix
Chinese Channel and the Phoenix Movies Channel and the
taking control in the management of the Phoenix CNE Channel.

Mr. LEUNG is a well-known figure in the Hong Kong media
and broadcasting field. He hosted a film magazine programme
for the Jade Channel of Television Broadcasting Limited
(“TVB") in the late 1960s. From 1969 to 1972, he then worked
as a translator and editor for one of Hong Kong’s first finance
newspapers, Ming Pao Evening News. From 1971 to 1978,
he worked respectively for the United States Information
Service in Hong Kong and the BBC External Services in London
as editor, programme producer and news announcer.
Thereafter, he spent 10 years with TVB, programming for its
Jade Channel and Pearl Channel at different times. He had
also been with ATV for a short period. While at TVB and ATV,
and subsequently at STAR, he set up the internal standards
and practices departments for all three and he was well versed
in all the regulatory issues involved in television broadcasting
in Greater China region.

Apart from being an experienced personality in the media
field, Mr. LEUNG is also a renowned writer on the cinema and
on cultural studies in Hong Kong and Taiwan, as well as a
published author of several books in these fields. He had also
been a programme consultant to many international film
festivals, including the Hong Kong International Film Festival,
and had sat on the editorial boards for many prestigious
publications at various times.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. WANG, Jiyan, aged 56, joined Phoenix in March 1996. Mr.
WANG is the Executive Vice President of Phoenix Satellite TV
and the Company and Head of the Phoenix Chinese Channel.
Mr. WANG has taught in Beijing Broadcasting Institute for more
than twenty years.

Mr. WANG is one of the leading television programme
producers in China and participated in the direction and
production of a number of television programmes in early
years. His television programme productions have won
numerous domestic and overseas awards.

Mr. WANG is also a scholar in the television industry and has
been the panelist of various international television festivals
and the presenter of international Chinese language television
festivals. He is also a renowned media educator and enjoys a
professor title. During the two decades of teaching in the
Beijing Broadcasting Institute, he was the head of the television
department for over ten years and was the deputy dean of the
Beijing Broadcasting Institute for six years.

Mr. YEUNG, Ka Keung, aged 45, is the Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of Phoenix Satellite TV
and the Company in charge of corporate finance and
administration. Mr. YEUNG joined Phoenix in March 1996
and has been in charge of all of Phoenix’s internal and external
financial management and arrangements as well as the
supervision of administration and personnel matters.

Mr. YEUNG graduated from the University of Birmingham and
remained in the United Kingdom until 1992 after obtaining
his qualification as a chartered accountant. Upon returning
to Hong Kong, he worked at Hutchison Telecommunications
and STAR in the field of finance and business development.

Mr. CHAU, Kwan, aged 49, is the Executive Vice President of
Phoenix Satellite TV. He graduated from the Beijing
Broadcasting Institute in July 1990 with a major in Editing
Studies in School of Television.

Mr. CHAU, Kwan joined Phoenix in 1998. He has been the
head of Phoenix Movies Channel, General Manager of Phoenix
Film and Television (Shenzhen) Co. Limited (Bl 2548 C&III)
BFRA7]) , Vice President and Deputy Director of
Programming of Phoenix Satellite TV. He is currently
responsible for advertising and marketing networks.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited
accounts of Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2004.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
20 to the accounts.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business and geographical segments is set out in note 2 to
the accounts.

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END

On 8 January 2004, the Company changed its financial year
end from 30 June to 31 December. The Directors consider
the reason for the change of financial year end is to align the
Group’s business cycle with that of its advertising customers,
and the agents who represent them, which normally have a
year end on 31 December and determine their advertising
budgets and operate on a calendar year basis.

As a result of the change of financial year end from 30 June
to 31 December, the comparatives for the consolidated profit
and loss account, consolidated statement of changes in equity,
consolidated cash flow statement and the related notes may
not be comparable.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated profit and loss account on page 74.

The Directors recommend the declaration and payment of a
final dividend of HK$0.01 per share to be payable to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 23 June 2005. Subject to the passing of
the necessary resolution at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting, such dividend would be payable on or about 8 July
2005.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in note 25 to the accounts.

DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the Group during the year

amounted to approximately HK$10,000 (six months ended
31 December 2003: HK$20,000).
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group are set
out in note 15 to the accounts.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in share capital and share options
of the Company are set out in note 23 and note 24, respectively,
to the accounts.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2004, calculated under the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately HK$788,780,000
(as at 31 December 2003: HK$784,315,000).

FIVE PERIOD/YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of

the Group for the last five financial period/years is set out on
pages 127 to 128.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

Executive Directors:
LIU, Changle (Alternate Director to CHUI, Keung)
CHUI, Keung (Alternate Director to LIU, Changle)

Non-Executive Directors:
GUTHRIE, Michelle Lee (Alternate Director to LAU,
Yu Leung John and CHEUNG, Chun On Daniel)
LAU, Yu Leung John (Alternate Director
to CHEUNG, Chun On Daniel)
CHEUNG, Chun On Daniel
(Alternate Director to LAU, Yu Leung John)
XU, Gang
CHEUNG, San Ping
(Alternate Director to LIU, Changle and CHUI, Keung)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

LO, Ka Shui

KUOK, Khoon Ean

LEUNG, Hok Lim (Appointed on 21 January 2005)

Alternate Director:
GONG, Jianzhong (Alternate Director to XU, Gang)

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company,
XU, Gang, LO, Ka Shui and LEUNG, Hok Lim will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

On 10 September 2003, each of the Executive Directors of
the Company has entered into a new service contract with
the Company commencing from 1 July 2003. The term of
each contract will be for a term of three years commencing
from 1 July 2003 and thereafter may be terminated by either
party giving to the other not less than three months’ written
notice.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors who are
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not terminable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The terms of office of each of the Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2004, the interests of the Directors and
chief executives in the shares of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which were notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) and
required to be entered in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) relating to securities
transactions by Directors, were as follows:

Ordinary shares
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Name interest interest interest interest of shares shareholding
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LIU, Changle' - - 1,854,000,000 1,854,000,000 37.6%
EEE-
Note: Mr. LIU, Changle is the beneficial owner of approximately Kt . BIRZ%E4ASBHENERARLN38.3%E

93.3% of the issued share capital of Today’s Asia Limited,
which in turn has an interest in approximately 37.6% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2004.

1 Being an Executive Director of the Company
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(Continued)

Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2004, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company, had any
interest or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein, or which were required,
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(A) Share option schemes of the Company
On 7 June 2000, two share option schemes of the
Company were approved by the shareholders of the
Company (“Shareholders”), namely Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme. In order to
enhance the flexibility in the implementation of the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme and the Share Option Scheme,
the committee of four Directors established for the
administration of the share option schemes (the
“Committee”) approved certain amendments to the terms
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on 14 February
2001 and the Share Option Scheme on 14 February 2001
and 6 August 2002, respectively. Such amendments have
been pre-approved by the Stock Exchange.

(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
The following is a summary of the principal terms
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2004:

Purpose of the scheme

The purpose of the scheme, though not explicitly
stated in the scheme document, is to recognise the
contribution of certain employees to the growth of
the Group and/or to the listing of shares of the
Company (“Shares”) on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange (“GEM”).
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) BREE (£

(A) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (A) AATMEBREE(E)
(1) Pre-1PO Share Option Scheme (Continued) (1) BERABBRAEREE(E)

The participants of the scheme

Employees of any member of the Company,
including any Executive Directors of any member
of the Group who have commenced working for the
Group for not less than one month prior to the date
of grant of an option and spent not less than twenty
hours per week in providing services to the Group
may take up options to subscribe for Shares.

The total number of securities available for issue
The total number of Shares available for issue under
options which may be granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of listing of
the Shares on GEM on 30 June 2000 (the “Listing
Date”).

The total number of Shares in respect of which
options are issuable under the scheme is
484,706,000 Shares, representing 10% and 9.8%,
respectively, of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the Listing Date and as at the date
of this report.

The maximum entitlement of each participant under
the scheme

No option may be granted to any eligible person
which, if at the relevant time exercised in full, would
result in the total number of Shares the subject of
such option, when added to the number of Shares
which may be subscribed by that eligible person
under any outstanding options granted to that
eligible person and to the number of Shares
previously subscribed by the eligible person under
any options granted to the eligible person under
the scheme exceeding 25% of the aggregate
number of Shares available for subscription under
the scheme at that time.

At E|a 2 EE
AARUEAIK B A RIHER (BN
R A Ha AR —E A%
ERNALEE N 52 RSB A
D20/ H) AR BUERI K B A F
M T TEES) AT 4 R R B A (D
H R AR IE o

A (R 7T B ABE

BRI E R AFBIRATE AR 8 R AT
] ELA 5+ IR H RO BB AR A T P 3597
KB BB AT T EHRBERNN _F
BEFERA=THERIFEREHER
(I LR H)) B AR AR B TR AR
10% °

RIBETEIR] T EITHIB RS KRR
DB ER484,706,00008 810 + 7 5l
R ET B RA AT E B AR
A2 BITARANAI10% 529.8% °

RIEaH &5 2L B RAIRE

fRER—REEBALTEmITEER
THRBAHE - AIEHZAERALH
BB BRI EZAEEBRAL
R TR AT TEEREA R
BRI BR Mz A BMATRER
SR AR TR BERIERIBE A D 2K
B - BBRIE SR R HRER D
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(A) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Time of exercise of option
An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the scheme at any time during the period
commencing one year from the date of grant of the
option and expiring ten years after the date of grant
of the option in accordance with the following
schedule:

Date of exercise of an option

BRESS (&
(A) ADRNBREE (E)
(1) BRAFERATERRETE ()

TTREERIE IR
BN LB A —F
e 1% HIBAHE B EiR + S EmE
MR A EAATE EARIRRT BV R - 1R
FRLAT B IR T IATTHE -

Percentage of Shares
comprised in options
which is exercisable

A F AT A AR
TR B P4l B 43 LE 43l
Between the date of grant of an option and less than Zero
12 months following the date of grant of an option
RUBERES I ERHBEREZ BRI 12EAR =
Between the period falling 12 months or more but less up to 25%
than 24 months from the date of grant of an option
RHERES HEM12E Agk 2 - B2R 2418 A EARE A &%25%
Between the period falling 24 months or more but less up to 50%
than 36 months from the date of grant of an option
R ERES B 282418 Az & - B 3618 A # EARE A &%50%
Between the period falling 36 months or more but less up to 75%
than 48 months from the date of grant of an option
R EERES H128361E Ak 2 1& - B2 481E8 A EARE A &®%75%
Any time falling 48 months from the date of grant of 100%
an option and thereafter
B ERAEE B & A48(E A R E AT AR 100%

Minimum holding period

As stated above, no option can be exercised within
the first twelve months following the date of grant
of an option.

The amount payable on acceptance of the option
The date by which the option must be applied for
being a date not more than three days from (and
including) the date on which the letter of offer of
the grant of option is issued by the Company (“Offer
Date”). Upon acceptance of the option, the option
holder shall pay HK$1 to the Company as
consideration of the grant.

RAZF B A
AR - ST EEAS A T AR
ferEE AgE+ @R AITRE -

EANB B E T RIS’

BRI AR B BN RN AR
REXR TRBEEXMEH(IEEZA
H]) (BFEZA)EFFNEE=RMN A
Hl - FIRAEBAER - BRERAA
AXMETLTARE  EAETH
HE -



SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(A) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)
(1) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The basis of determining the exercise price

Same as the offer price for the Shares as set out in

the prospectus of the Company dated 21 June 2000

(the “Prospectus”).

The remaining life of the scheme
The scheme period expires upon the listing of the
Company on the GEM, for which the option expires
when the vesting period ends.

The details of share options granted by the Company
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme to the
Directors of the Company and the employees of the
Group to acquire shares were as follows:

Type and
number of
remaining grantees

BTHARA
BRR%A

2 Executive Directors:
2RMITES -
LIU, Changle

HRE

CHUI, Keung

ER

88 other employees

881 IER

Total: A5

90 employees 90 & (28

Date of grant

RHAH

14 June 2000

TR

ARTHA

14 June 2000

—=55

ARTHA

14 June 2000

==oo

ARTHA

Vesting period

BES

14 June 2000 to

13 June 2001
—BTEE

—TEE

NATEAZE
—I%-F

AAT=R

14 June 2000 to

13 June 2001
2.3
~NATHEE
—2%-F

ART=R

14 June 2000 to
13 June 2001
“%3%F
NATHAZ
—2%-%

AAT=R

Exercise period

T

14 June 2001 to
13 June 2010
—2%-%
NATHAZE
“%-%F

AAT=R

14 June 2001 to
13 June 2010
“2%-f%
~ATHEE
—Z-%F

ART=R

14 June 2001 to
13 June 2010
—2%-%
NATHAZ
—3-%%

AAT=R

Exercise price
per share

Bk
fTieE
HK$
#T

1.08

1.08

1.08

BRESE (F)
(A) QT HBRETE ()

(1)

BRAPIIERATIER Rt B ()
BEETEENZE
EARNRR_ZTTFA-_1+—H
TN ARER (FEIRER]) &5 H
Ifr B EEMRR e

Gt EER TR
FHEIEIRN A R RIEAIER L&
i BB AER T T R A R
& o

AR RMRIEE R A FHBRAT BT

ERARREERAEEREEBRLA
BB D BBAERFISIT -

Number of share options

BRERE
Balance as at
Balance as at Lapsed during Exercised during 31 December
1 January 2004 the year the year 2004
R-ZERE R-ZERE
-A-H TS
&8 RERKH RERTHR ]
5,320,000 - - 5,320,000
3,990,000 - - 3,990,000
36,618,000 (248,000) (4,708,000) 31,662,000
45,928,000 (248,000) (4,708,000) 40,972,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(A) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)

(1)

2)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2004, 248,000
options granted to 5 employees lapsed when they
ceased their employment with the Group.

Save as disclosed above, no other option has been
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.

Save as stated above, no option has been granted to
the Directors, chief executive, management
shareholders, substantial shareholders, or their
respective associates, or to the suppliers of goods or
services under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme. No
participant was granted any option in excess of the
individual limit as set out in the GEM Listing Rules or
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.

Share Option Scheme

The following is a summary of the principal terms
of the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December
2004:

Purpose of the scheme
The purpose of the scheme is to retain and provide
incentives to the employees of the Group to achieve
its business objectives.

The participants of the scheme

Employees of any member of the Company,
including any Executive Directors of any member
of the Group, in full-time employment with the
Company (or its subsidiaries) may take up options
to subscribe for Shares.

The total number of securities available for issue

(@) The total number of Shares available for issue
under options which may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes must not in aggregate exceed 10%
(or such higher percentage as may be allowed
under the GEM Listing Rules) of the issued
share capital of the Company in issue as at
the date of approval of the scheme unless
Shareholders’ approval has been obtained
pursuant to paragraphs (b) and (c) below.

(b) The Company may seek approval by
Shareholders in general meeting to refresh the
limit as referred to in the above paragraph (a).

BRES (&
A YRR AT B ()

(A)

(1)

)

EK AR ARATI A B (%)
NEE-FEME+-A=+—AL
R BT AAERK248,0001
B R S T B S RN AR ETIR
8

B ESCRFEESN - WEBARERFEA
TR - SRR

B EXCPrai &SN - WA AHE SRR
BRAFRERRIBEE MR TE
TR BEEERR  XER
R SBREEENHEAL  HER
KRG GER - WESRERF
K I BB AR _ERARRIFTHS
FARIE BR AR AR AT 2R
(EPNGES

BRETE
UTRR=—ZTNF+_H=+—H
HO B SRR 81 RO Z RS2

v /z0)=N:0)
sHElR B Ak RITHRE T A
ERENEREXBHEE

At E|p 2 E

AR R (S EKT B AR) 2B TER
ARARUEAIK B A RIHER (B
SEERKE R RN TES)
A A AT SRR AL HO B AR HE

A (R 7T B AR

(a) ARBEAAERT S ST EMET
R AR AR T AT BT EY
IR BEA N SHBIBA AR
Pit/ERTEIE BB BT
H10% (SR RIS IR L AR Rl
MERA AL @ ERETX
(b) B2 (c) BREIS R HE/EERR SN

(b) ARRAAIRBRAE LSRR
SRULMET T X (a) RATL A2
BRI -



SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) BRESSE (&
(A) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (A) ZEATMBRESE ()
(2) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (2) MBREE(E)

(c) The Company may seek separate
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting
to grant options beyond the limit as referred
to in the above paragraph (a) provided that
the total number of Shares subject to the
scheme and any other schemes does not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the relevant class
of securities of the Company in issue from time
to time.

(d) Shareholders’ approval has been obtained on
6 August 2002 to refresh the 10% limit. The
Directors may grant options for subscription
of up to 493,173,000 Shares (which do not
include those options that are outstanding,
cancelled or lapsed), representing 10% of the
issued share capital as at the date of this
annual report.

The maximum entitlement of each participant under
the scheme

Unless approved by Shareholders, the total number
of securities issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each participant (including
both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-
month period must not exceed 1% of the relevant
class of securities of the Company in issue.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the scheme at any time during the period
commencing one year from the date of grant of the
option and expiring ten years after the date of grant
of the option in accordance with the following
schedule:

(c) ARAAIRERERA® ER1TS
SKARRHLER T _EX (a) B
ATt BR 1 o 8 R - AT 81
AT EL AT &5 M A {0 48 2k
TEBERRR IR ETH
W RIEFH30% °

(d) BRRR-_ZZT_F/N\AXNEH#
EEF10%RE) - ERARL
R A% 493,173,0000% A% 11
(T EE R ARTTE - AR
B ZE B ) O BBAR I - BRE
R BB IEARFRAHOE E
TTAZAR10% ©

RIZET &5 2 E B R AR

BRASARERALIESN - IME(+ (A A
RIARE2EER THBRE (215
EITREARITERMNBEAE) TEEE
BT RS ETHR SR NSEER
REEHEITARBARIEZN1%

TTEERIE IR
BN B A —F
FGER L ERE R BR10FER
HY ER R A (AT AR AR A B O fER5K -
RARPA TSR R T IATTIE

@

[(6)]
s

EWREE

Report of the Directors %



SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) BRESSE (&
(A) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (A) ZEATMBRESE ()
(2) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (2) MBREE(E)
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Date of exercise of an option
TR B

Between the date of grant of an option and less than
12 months following the date of grant of an option
RUERESE I EREBERESZ BRI 12EARN

Between the period falling 12 months or more but
less than 24 months from the date of grant of an option
RHERES BEM12E Agk 2% - BDR 2418 A EIRE A

Between the period falling 24 months or more but
less than 36 months from the date of grant of an option
R ERES HEA241E Az 1& - B0 3618 A EARE A

Between the period falling 36 months or more but

less than 48 months from the date of grant of an option
RHERES H2/36ME Agk 2 & - B2 4818 A EARE A

Any time falling 48 months from the date of grant of
an option and thereafter
BHEREE B & A481E A REZ TR

Minimum holding period

As stated above, no option can be exercised within
the first twelve months following the date of grant
of an option.

The amount payable on acceptance of the option
The date by which the option must be applied for
being a date not more than twenty one days from
(and including) the Offer Date. Upon acceptance
of the option, the option holder shall pay HK$1 to
the Company as consideration of the grant.

Percentage of Shares
comprised in options
which is exercisable
A FAT LB AR
FirA& B 43 L 51

zero
up to 25%
&%25%
up to 50%
&=%50%

up to 75%

RAZFF B A
PRI - AR R AR S
fereE AgE+—ERANITRE -

EANB B E T ISR
iR B A RIE 2 B 8
(EfRe% H) EEst NiE — +— KA
R MBS - BBRUERTE AR
MAETTARA  ESETHRK
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) BRESE (F)
(A) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued) (A) ZEATMBRESE ()
(2) Share Option Scheme (Continued) (2) MBREE(E)

The basis of determining the exercise price

The subscription price for the Shares under the
scheme shall be determined by the Committee and
will be no less than the highest of (a) the closing
price of Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the Offer Date which must
be a business day, (b) the average closing price
per Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the Offer Date and (c) the
nominal value of the Share.

The remaining life of the scheme

The scheme will remain in force for a period of ten
years commencing on the date of the adoption of
the scheme. Upon termination, no further options
may be granted under the scheme.

The details of share options granted by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme to the employees
of the Group to acquire Shares were as follows:

Type and number of

remaining grantees Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period
BTHRRA

EARHE RIEAH | £ 2 ]
2 employees 15 February 2001 15 February 2001 to 15 February 2002 to
14 February 2002 14 February 2011
%E8 “E3-ECAtRA ZET-SCATRA CETCECATRAZ
E33-F-ATRA —3-——5-A1RA
18 employees 10 August 2001 10 August 2001 to 10 August 2002 to
9 August 2002 9 August 2011
18%4(E8 “E5-5)\AtE  ZET-E)\ATAE  ZET-E)\ATHE
“Z5ZEN\ANA “Z-—5)\ANA
5 employees 20 December 2002 20 December 2002 to 20 December 2003 to

19 December 2003 19 December 2012
S4EE ZEECECACHE ZETCETCACTH ZEESECACTHEE
ECRECEFCATAR ZE-CZEtZATRA

Total: &t :

25 employees 25 A{ES

BEETIEENIEE
RETENRMRBEALRRESE
E o UPPRAT=ZERHREE
()N IE2EH (AREXR) &
B RBERMAIINKHE -
(D) ERIEE AR AEE R
BEMR e B RERATIN T
MER(c) I mEE °

FTEIB T FE

B = ?%Téf’ﬂ?ﬂ‘?ﬂ B8R T AR
B o RIRIERS » AT BRIEETEIR
TREIRHE o

ARRIREBIE SR AR ERER
B AR B AR 1 BO BB AR A O R 1B 40

TS
Number of share options
ERERA
Exercise price Balance as at Lapsed  Exercised during Balance as at
pershare 1 January 2004 during the year the year 31 December 2004
BR  M-EImE R-ZEQRE
ik®  -A-R&K ERKH Rk TZA=t-BER
HKS
BT
1.9 1,700,000 - - 1,700,000
113 12,160,000 - (120,000 ) 12,040,000
079 2,468,000 - (238,000 ) 2,230,000
16,328,000 - (358,000) 15,970,000
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(A) Share option schemes of the Company (Continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme (Continued)
Save as disclosed above, no option has been
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year.

No option had been granted to the Directors, chief
executive, management shareholders, substantial
shareholders, or their respective associates, or to
the suppliers of goods or services under the Share
Option Scheme. No participant was granted any
option in excess of the individual limit as set out in
the GEM Listing Rules or under the Share Option
Scheme.

The summary of the treatment of forfeiture of option

prior to the expiry date is set out in the appendix of
the half-yearly report 2000/2001.

Valuation of share options

The options granted are not recognised in the
financial statements of the Group until they are
exercised. The Directors consider that it is not
appropriate to state the value of the options granted
during the year on the ground that a number of
variables which are crucial for the valuation of the
option value cannot be reasonably determined.
Accordingly, the Directors believe that any valuation
of the share options based on a great number of
speculative assumptions would not be meaningful
and may be misleading to the Shareholders.

(B) Share option scheme of a subsidiary of the Company

PHOENIXi PLAN

On 7 June 2000, PHOENIXi Investment Limited
(“PHOENIXi"), a member of the Group, adopted the
PHOENIXi 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the “PHOENIXi
Plan”). The following is a summary of the principal terms
of the PHOENIXi Plan as at 31 December 2004:

Purpose of the scheme

The purposes of the PHOENIXi Plan are to attract and
retain the best available personnel, to provide additional
incentive to its employees and Executive Directors and
to promote the success of its business.

The participants of the scheme

The employees of PHOENIXi, including any Executive
Directors, in the full-time employment of PHOENIXi (or
the subsidiaries of PHOENIXi) or the Company are eligible
to take up options to subscribe for shares in PHOENIXi.
In addition, to be classified as an eligible person, where
the employee is employed by a holding company of
PHOENIXi or a subsidiary of PHOENIXi, the employee
must perform an executive role for PHOENIXi.

BRESS (&
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(B) Share option scheme of a subsidiary of the Company
(Continued)
The total number of securities available for issue
(@) The total number of shares available for issue under
options which may be granted under the PHOENIXi
Plan and any other schemes of PHOENIXi, must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of PHOENIXi as at the Listing Date unless
approvals of the Shareholders of the Company and
PHOENIXi have been obtained pursuant to
paragraphs (b) and (c) below.

(b) PHOENIXi may seek approval by the Shareholders
of the Company and PHOENIXi in a general meeting
to refresh the 10% limit. However, the total number
of shares available for issue under options which
may be granted under the PHOENIXi Plan and any
other schemes of PHOENIXi in these circumstances
must not exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of PHOENIXi at the date of approval of the refreshing
of the limit.

(c) PHOENIXi may seek separate approval of the
Shareholders of the Company and PHOENIXi in a
general meeting to grant options beyond the 10%
limit provided that (i) the total number of shares
subject to the PHOENIXi Plan and any other
schemes of PHOENIXi does not in aggregate exceed
30% of the total issued share capital of PHOENIXi
and (ii) the options in excess of the 10% limit are
granted only to participants specified by PHOENIXi
before such approval is sought.

The maximum entitlement of each participant under
the scheme

No options may be granted to any eligible person which,
if at the relevant time exercised in full, would result in
the total number of shares of PHOENIXi the subject of
such option, when added to the number of shares already
issued and/or issuable to him/her under the PHOENIXi
Plan exceeding 25% of the aggregate number of shares
of PHOENIXi in respect of which options are issuable
under the PHOENIXi Plan.

BRESS (&

(B)

FAR-FHEQRNBRES (F)

AR ITRYE F 42

(a) #RIEPHOENIXizTEIMPHOENIXI{E
] L 1221452 ) O S SRR T T 4R 354 T
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)
(B) Share option scheme of a subsidiary of the Company

(Continued)

Time of exercise of option

Generally, an option may be exercised at any time during
a period of no more than ten years commencing from
the date of grant. However, in the case of an Incentive
Stock Option (“ISO”) granted to a person, who at the
time of the grant, owns shares in PHOENIXi representing
more than 10% of the voting power of PHOENIXi, the
Company or any subsidiary of the Company, the option
period will be five years from the date of grant thereof.

Minimum holding period
As stated above, there is no minimum holding period for
which an option can be exercised.

The amount payable on acceptance of the option
The date by which the option must be applied for being
a date not more than twenty one days from (and
including) the Offer Date. Upon acceptance of the option,
the option holder shall pay US$1 to the Company as
consideration of the grant.

The basis of determining the exercise price

The price for the shares of PHOENIXi upon the exercise
of an option under the PHOENIXi Plan will, in the case
of:

(@) an ISO or a Non-Qualified Stock Option (“NQS”),
where the grantee owns more than 10% of the
shares of the Company, PHOENIXi or its subsidiaries
(each a “Related Entity”), be equal to not less than
110% of the Fair Market Value (as referred to below)
per share of PHOENIXi on the date of the grant.

(b) an ISO or NQS, where the grantee does not own
more than 10% of the shares of PHOENIXi or a
Related Entity, be equal to not less than the Fair
Market Value per share of PHOENIXi on the date of
the grant.

(c) an option which is neither an ISO nor an NQS but
where the grantee owns more than 10% of the
shares of PHOENIXi or a Related Entity, be equal
to not less than the Fair Market Value per share of
PHOENIXi on the date of the grant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

(B) Share option scheme of a subsidiary of the Company
(Continued)
The basis of determining the exercise price (Continued)

(d)

an option which is neither an ISO nor an NQS but
where the grantee does not own more than 10% of
the shares of PHOENIXi or a Related Entity, be equal
to not less than 85% of the Fair Market Value per
share of PHOENIXi on the date of the grant, but if
the shares of PHOENIXi are listed or if a Director of
the Company or PHOENIXi or their associates
participates in the PHOENIXi Plan, the per share
price must not be less than the Fair Market Value
per share of PHOENIXi on the date of the grant.

For the purpose of the above “Fair Market Value” means

as of any date, the value of shares of the Company,
PHOENIXi or any subsidiary of PHOENIXi (as the case
may be) determined as follows:

(i)

(ii)

where the shares of PHOENIXi are listed on any
stock exchange, the Fair Market Value shall be (a)
no less than the higher of the closing price for a
share on the date of the grant of an option which
must be a business day, or (b) the average closing
price of the share for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant (the closing
price shall be the price on the stock exchange on
which the shares of PHOENIXi are listed) or (c) the
nominal value of a share; or

in the absence of an established market for the
shares of the type described in (i) above, the Fair
Market Value thereof shall be determined by the
Committee in good faith on a fair and reasonable
basis but in a manner consistent with Section
260.140.50 of Title 10 of the California Code of
Regulations but in any event must in no
circumstances be less than the latest audited net
tangible assets per share of PHOENIXi unless none
of the Directors or their associates of PHOENIXi or
the Company participate in the Plan, in which event,
reference does not need to be made to the latest
audited net tangible asset per share of PHOENIXi
for the purpose of determining the Fair Market Value
of the shares.

The remaining life of the scheme

The scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years
commencing on the date of the adoption of the scheme.
Upon termination, no further options may be granted
under the scheme.

As at 31 December 2004, no options had been granted
under the PHOENIXi Plan.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Under the terms of the Company’s share option schemes
approved by the Shareholders on 7 June 2000, the Committee
may, at their discretion, invite any employee of the Company
or any of the Group companies, including any Executive
Directors, to take up options to subscribe for Shares. The
maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the share option schemes must not exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company. The terms of
the Share Option Scheme were amended on 14 February 2001
and 6 August 2002 respectively, and a summary of the
amended Share Option Scheme is set out in the section
headed “Share Option Schemes” of this report.

Save as disclosed herein, and other than those in connection
with the Group reorganisation scheme prior to the Company’s
listing of Shares, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of the companies comprising the Group a party to any
arrangement to enable the Company’s Directors or their
associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
Shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

EEBAROIES Z2EA

BREREN —ZEZF XA AENARRF
BT EIER - ZEE S NBRBEARFHK
AN EEfR AL B ARIHE NMEHAE & (BIE A5
1TEB) BN REBRG B IRRE - IR IBEEARE
TEIREMBRES RN ERRGOEE - 0]
RBBARR B BEITRAMN10% - BIEEE
FEDFIN —_EE—F_A+HAR_TT
FNANBBE] - KIS ERER S ZH T
AR [FEAR T ] — & ©

B EXRERESARRBRN ETAIMETZ
AEEEHABEN  ARABHAREEETE
] Bk 8 A B B R (AT s B A 2 B AT S ()
2 BEARREFHREF ZBHEALAE
BEABRMDRAR R SUEMEMRREEZE
ZF M

EENEOER
ARBEREARBKE TN E QRS2 EET
I REAEBEBEENBE  ARAFELS
REFSHFAERBRDABR AP - B8
BEERSEREREMEAES

EEESN
ARRNFRAL BT L HFEDAELAER
BIES 2 2 MREMEABHNEEMEEDN
B#l e



SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2004, the interest of the shareholders
(not being Directors and the chief executive of the Company)
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
and required to be entered in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

(i) Substantial shareholders

Name of substantial shareholders

FERREH

Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd. (Note 1)
Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd. (#f7%1)
Today’s Asia Limited (Note 2)
SHIENERAR (772

Notes:

1.  Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd. is a subsidiary of
STAR Group Limited. News Cayman Holdings Limited
holds 100% of the ordinary voting shares of STAR Group
Limited. News Publishers Investments Pty, Limited holds
100% of the ordinary voting shares of News Cayman
Holdings Limited. News Publishers Investments Pty,
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of STAR US Holdings
Subsidiary, LLC, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of STAR US Holdings, Inc. STAR US Holdings, Inc. is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of News Publishing Australia
Limited, which in turn is an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of News Holdings Limited (formerly known as
The News Corporation Limited) (“NHL").

On 12 November 2004 NHL completed a reorganization
transaction under which News Corporation indirectly
acquired all of the shares in NHL via News Australia
Holdings Pty Limited, its wholly-owned subsidiary.

By virtue of the SFO, News Corporation, News Australia
Holdings Pty Limited, NHL, News Publishing Australia
Limited, STAR US Holdings, Inc, STAR US Holdings
Subsidiary, LLC, News Publishers Investments Pty, Limited,
News Cayman Holdings Limited and STAR Group Limited
are all deemed to be interested in the 1,854,000,000 Shares
held by Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
(i) Substantial shareholders (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

2. Today’s Asia Limited is beneficially owned by Mr. LIU,

Changle and Mr. CHAN, Wing Kee as to 93.3% and 6.7%
interests, respectively.

(ii) Other person who is required to disclose his interests
Name of other person who has
more than 5% interest

FABBS%ESNEMALTHNER

China Wise International Limited (Note)
EHEBBRERAR (HiE)

Note: China Wise International Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Cultural Developments Limited, which in turn
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bank of China Group
Investment Limited. Bank of China Group Investment
Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Bank of China
Limited, which in turn is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Central Huijin Investment Company Limited. By virtue of
the SFO, Central Huijin Investment Company Limited,
Bank of China Limited, Bank of China Group Investment
Limited and Cultural Developments Limited are all deemed
to be interested in the 412,000,000 shares held by China
Wise International Limited.

Save as disclosed above, no other shareholders or other
persons had interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, was
directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meeting of any other member of
the Group, or any options in respect of such capital.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the Company’s Articles of
Association and the law in the Cayman Islands in relation to
the issue of new Shares by the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REPURCHASE OF SHARES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or repurchased any of the Shares during the
year.

SPONSORS’ INTERESTS

As at 30 June 2002, BOCI Asia Limited and Merrill Lynch Far
East Limited ceased to be the sponsors of the Company upon
expiration of the terms of contract after two years of service.
The Company had no sponsors since 1 July 2002. Accordingly,
no additional disclosure is made.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1. The following connected transactions with Satellite
Television Asian Region Limited (“STARL”), STAR TV
Filmed Entertainment Limited (“STAR Filmed”), ATV
Enterprises Limited (“ATVE”) and Asia Television Limited
(“ATV") have been approved by resolutions of
independent shareholders passed on 26 June 2003:

(@) STARL is a subsidiary of Xing Kong Chuan Mei
Group Co., Ltd., a substantial shareholder of the
Company. The connected transactions are:

(i)  STARL provides technical and administrative
services for the operations of the Phoenix
Chinese Channel, Phoenix Movies Channel,
Phoenix InfoNews Channel, Phoenix North
America Chinese Channel and Phoenix
Chinese News and Entertainment Channel.
For the year ended 31 December 2004, the
service charges paid/payable to STARL
amounted to approximately HK$52,917,000,
which was calculated under the terms of the
executed service agreement between a
subsidiary of the Company and STARL. Such
amount did not exceed the annual cap of
HK$80,000,000 for each of the three years
ending 30 June 2006, approved under the
relevant resolutions.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

STARL acts as an agent to promote
international subscription sales and marketing
services for the Group. For the year ended 31
December 2004, commission for international
subscription sales and marketing services
paid/payable to STARL amounted to
approximately HK$2,645,000, which was
calculated based on 15% of the subscription
fees generated and received by STARL on
behalf of the Group. Such amount did not
exceed the annual caps of HK$5,000,000 for
the year ended 30 June 2004 and
HK$7,500,000 for the year ending 30 June
2005, respectively, approved under the
relevant resolutions.

STARL acts as an exclusive advertising agent
for the Group at all territories outside the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). For the
year ended 31 December 2004, commission
for advertising sales and marketing services
paid/payable to STARL amounted to
approximately HK$944,000, which was
calculated based on 4%-15% of the net
advertising income generated and received by
STARL on behalf of the Group after deducting
the relevant amount of the third party agency
fees incurred by it. Such amount did not
exceed the annual cap of HK$20,000,000 for
each of the three years ending 30 June 2006
approved under the relevant resolutions.
Pursuant to a letter of termination dated 18
October 2004, STARL ceased to act as the
advertising sales agent for the Group with
effect from 30 September 2004 but will
continue to provide services and receive
commission in respect of advertising sales
contracts concluded by STARL on behalf of
the Group prior to its cessation or as
specifically agreed by the parties.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) STAR Filmed is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of STAR Group Limited, which holds 100% of Xing
Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd., a substantial
shareholder of the Company. The connected
transaction relates to the granting of a non-exclusive
licence to exhibit a selection of movies on Phoenix
Movies Channel in the PRC for a term of 10 years
commencing from 28 August 1998. For the year
ended 31 December 2004, the film licence fees
paid/payable to STAR Filmed amounted to
approximately HK$20,337,000, which were
charged according to the executed film rights
licensing agreement between a subsidiary of the
Company and STAR Filmed. Such amount did not
exceed the annual cap of HK$23,000,000 for each
of the three years ending 30 June 2006 approved

under the relevant resolutions.

(c) ATVE, a wholly-owned subsidiary of ATV, is a
connected party by virtue of the fact that Mr. LIU,
Changle and Mr. CHAN, Wing Kee beneficially own
93.3% and 6.7%, respectively, of Today's Asia
Limited, which holds 100% of Vital Media Holdings
Limited, which in turn holds 46% indirect interest
in ATV. Mr. CHAN, Wing Kee also owns 95% of
Dragon Sheen Holdings Limited which holds
16.25% indirect interest in ATV as at 31 December
2004. He also owns 80% of Dragon Goodwill
International Limited, which has completed its
acquisition of 32.75% interests in ATV on 25 July
2003. The connected transaction relates to the
acquisition of certain television programme licences
from ATVE. For the year ended 31 December 2004,
programme licence fees paid/payable to ATVE
amounted to approximately HK$709,000, which
were charged according to the executed licensing
agreement between a subsidiary of the Company
and ATVE. Such amount did not exceed the annual
cap of HK$15,000,000 for each of the three years
ending 30 June 2006 approved under the relevant

resolutions.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) A subsidiary of the Company has entered into an
arrangement to provide technical support services
and equipment to ATV for the operation of the ATV
Home Channel (U.S. version) via EchoStar Satellite
Corporation, a direct-to-home satellite television
operator in the United States. For the year ended
31 December 2004, the service fees received/
receivable from the provision of technical support
services and equipment to ATV were approximately
HK$1,402,000, which was charged according to
the executed service agreement between this
subsidiary and ATV. Such amount did not exceed
the annual cap of HK$2,000,000 for each of the
three years ending 30 June 2006 approved under
the relevant resolutions.

A subsidiary of the Company has entered into an
agreement with Fox News Network L.L.C. (“Fox”), an
associate of Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd., a
substantial shareholder of the Company. The connected
transactions relate to:

(a) granting of non-exclusive and non-transferable
licence to subscribe for Fox's news service;

(b) leasing of office space and access to workspace,
subject to availability; and

(c) accessing Fox’'s camera hook up at the United
Nations, interview positions in various places in the
United States and live shots from Fox’s satellite truck
positions for events that Fox is already covering,
subject to availability.

For the year ended 31 December 2004, the service
charges paid/payable to Fox amounted to approximately
HK$3,792,000, which were charged under the licensing
agreement between this subsidiary and Fox. Such
amount did not exceed the annual cap of HK$4,627,155
for the year ended 31 December 2004 approved under
the relevant resolutions.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

3.

A 70% owned subsidiary of the Company has entered
into a transponder rental agreement and an electronic
programme guide (“EPG") services agreement with
British Sky Broadcasting Limited (“BSkyB"), an associate
of Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd., a substantial
shareholder of the Company. These connected
transactions relate to the provision of transponder rental,
uplinking and EPG services for Phoenix Chinese News
and Entertainment Channel. For the year ended 31
December 2004, the transponder rental and uplink costs
paid/payable to BSkyB amounted to approximately
HK$5,012,000, which were charged in accordance with
the service agreements with BSkyB. Such amount did
not exceed the annual cap of HK$6,600,000 for each of
the three years ending 30 June 2005 approved by the
independent shareholders on 6 August 2002.

For the year ended 31 December 2004, news footage
and data transmission services were provided by ATV to
a subsidiary of the Company. The service charges paid/
payable to ATV amounted to approximately HK$790,000,
which were charged based on terms mutually agreed
upon between both parties. This is a connected
transaction but falls within Rule 20.31 of GEM Listing
Rules. Such transaction is exempted from the reporting,
announcement and Shareholders’ approval requirements
of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2004, decoder devices
sold to STARL amounted to approximately HK$64,000,
which were charged based on terms mutually agreed
upon between both parties. This is a connected
transaction but falls within Rule 20.31 of GEM Listing
Rules. Such transaction is exempted from the reporting,
announcement and Shareholders’ approval requirements
of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

BEXS (£)

3.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

6.

For the year ended 31 December 2004, the Group had
purchased certain broadcast operations and engineering
equipment from STARL. The purchases of broadcast
operations and engineering equipment amounted to
approximately HK$98,000, which were charged under
the equipment purchase agreement. This is a connected
transaction but falls within Rule 20.34 of GEM Listing
Rules. Such transaction is exempted from the
Shareholders’ approval requirements of Chapter 20 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company has made an
announcement on 5 January 2004 in respect of this
connected transaction with STARL.

A subsidiary of the Company has entered into a license
agreement with The DIRECTV Group, Inc. (“DIRECTV”),
which is 34% owned by Fox. Fox is 82% owned by News
Corporation, the ultimate holding company of Xing Kong
Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd., a substantial shareholder of
the Company. These connected transactions relate to
the licensing of the non-exclusive right to distribute the
Phoenix North America Chinese Channel via its direct
broadcast service satellite — delivered television system
in North America. For the year ended 31 December
2004, the license fee received/receivable from DIRECTV
amounted to approximately HK$2,309,000, which were
charged in accordance with the license agreement with

DIRECTV. Such amount did not exceed the annual cap
of HK$3,000,000 for the year ended 31 December 2004.

A subsidiary of the Company has entered into a sub-
license agreement for the sub-licensing of certain
programmes and a license agreement for the licensing
of a television series with SGL Entertainment Limited
(“SGL"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Xing Kong Chuan
Mei Group Co., Ltd., a substantial shareholder of the
Company. For the year ended 31 December 2004, the
license fee paid/payable to SGL amounted to
approximately HK$1,182,000, which were charged in
accordance with the license agreement with SGL. This
is a connected transaction but falls within Rule 20.34 of
GEM Listing Rules. Such transaction is exempted from
the Shareholders’ approval requirements of Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company had made an
announcement on 27 September 2004 in respect of this
connected transaction with SGL.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
The Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company have reviewed the above transactions and have
considered the procedures performed by the auditors of
the Company in reviewing them and confirmed that at
the time of the transactions:

(a) the transactions have been entered into by the
relevant member of the Group in the ordinary and
usual course of its business;

(b) the transactions have been entered into on an arm'’s
length basis and on normal commercial terms (to
the extent that there are comparable transactions)
or, if there are not sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, or terms not less favourable to
the Group than terms available to or from (as the
case may be) independent third parties; and

(c) the transactions have been entered into in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and programme purchases for the
year/period attributable to the Group’s major customers and
suppliers are as follows:

Sales SHE
— the largest customer — AP
— five largest customers TN
Programme purchases B B B
— the largest supplier — AHIER
— five largest suppliers — AAHER

STAR Filmed is the largest programme supplier of the Group
referred to above. Details of the transactions between the
Group and STAR Filmed are set out in note 31 to the accounts.
STAR Filmed is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of STAR
Group Limited, which holds 100% of Xing Kong Chuan Mei
Group Co., Ltd., a substantial shareholder of the Company.

For the six months period ended 31 December 2003, ATVE, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ATV, is one of the five largest
programme suppliers of the Group referred to above. Details
of the transactions between the Group and ATVE are set out
in note 31 to the accounts. Mr. LIU, Changle and Mr. CHAN,
Wing Kee beneficially own 93.3% and 6.7%, respectively, of
Today's Asia Limited, which indirectly own approximately 46%
of ATV as at 31 December 2004. Mr. CHAN, Wing Kee also
owns 95% of Dragon Sheen Holdings Limited which holds
16.25% indirect interest in ATV as at 31 December 2004. He
also owns 80% of Dragon Goodwill International Limited, which
has completed its acquisition of 32.75% interests in ATV on
25 July 2003.

In the opinion of the Directors, such transactions were carried
out on terms no more favourable than terms available to
independent third parties.

Save as above mentioned, none of the Directors, their
associates, or any Shareholders which, to the knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital has a beneficial interest in any one of the Group’s top
five customers and/or programme suppliers.

TEEXEFRHER
AEBIBEFRHUEREEGLT PAHER
HBRBED LT

Year ended Six months ended
31 December 2004 31 December 2003
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COMPETING INTERESTS

Today’s Asia Limited, Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd.
and China Wise International Limited have interests in
approximately 37.6%, 37.6% and 8.3% of the share capital
of the Company, respectively. Today’s Asia Limited, together
with its shareholders, Mr. LIU, Changle and Mr. CHAN, Wing
Kee, Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd. and China Wise
International Limited are deemed to be the initial management
shareholders of the Company as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules.

Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd., together with its ultimate
parent company, News Corporation, are active in the television
broadcasting industry worldwide. News Corporation’s
diversified global operations in the United States, Canada, the
United Kingdom, Australia, Latin America and the Pacific
Basin include the production of motion pictures and television
programming; television, satellite and cable broadcasting; the
publication of newspapers, magazines and books; the
production and distribution of promotional and advertising
products and services; the development of digital
broadcasting; the development of conditional access and
subscriber management systems; and the creation and
distribution of popular on-line programming. Currently, STAR
Group Limited, the holding company of Xing Kong Chuan Mei
Group Co., Ltd., owns and operates multimedia digital
platforms, including satellite television, in the Asia Pacific
region and engages in programme licensing and advertising
agency business throughout the world, including China. STAR
Group Limited and its subsidiaries (including Xing Kong Chuan
Mei Group Co., Ltd.) operate and broadcast a range of
channels, such as STAR Movies and STAR Chinese Channel
(which presently only broadcasts in Taiwan) and Channel [V].
The broadcasting coverage of Channel [V] includes China,
Taiwan, Hong Kong, countries in South East Asia, the Indian
sub-continent and the Middle East. STAR Group Limited
announced on 19 December 2001 that it was granted landing
rights for a new 24-hour Mandarin — language general
entertainment channel, Xing Kong Wei Shi, in southern China
by virtue of an agreement signed among STAR (China) Limited
(STAR Group Limited’s wholly-owned subsidiary), China
International Television Corporation (“CITVC”), Guangdong
Cable TV Networks Co. Ltd. and Fox Cable Networks Services,
L.L.C., an affiliate of STAR Group Limited. STAR Group Limited
further announced on 15 January 2003 that it has signed an
agreement with CITVC, enabling Xing Kong Wei Shi to be
viewed nationally in hotels with three-stars and above, and in
foreign and overseas Chinese compounds.
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COMPETING INTERESTS (Continued)

Mr. LIU, Changle and Mr. CHAN, Wing Kee beneficially own
93.3% and 6.7%, respectively, of Today’s Asia Limited, which
holds 100% of Vital Media Holdings Limited, which in turn
holds 46% indirect interest in ATV, a Hong Kong based
television broadcasting company. Mr. CHAN, Wing Kee also
owns 95% of Dragon Sheen Holdings Limited which holds
16.25% indirect interest in ATV as at 31 December 2004. He
also owns 80% of Dragon Goodwill International Limited, which
has completed its acquisition of 32.75% interests in ATV on
25 July 2003. ATV is deemed to be a connected person of the
Company pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. Primarily aiming
at audiences in Hong Kong, ATV broadcasts its programmes
via terrestrial transmission through two channels, one in
Cantonese and the other in English. Signals of such two
channels can also be received in certain parts of Guangdong
Province of the PRC. ATV announced in August 2002 that it
had received the approval from the authorities in China to
broadcast its Cantonese and English channels through the
cable system in Guangdong. ATV is also granted a non-
domestic television programme service license in May 2004,
in addition to its existing domestic free television programme
service license.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the
substantial shareholders of the Company (as defined under
the GEM Listing Rules) has any interests in a business which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

ADVANCES TO AN ENTITY

Please refer to note 11 to the accounts for the details of the
relevant advance, as defined in Rules 17.14 of the GEM Listing
Rules to an entity from the Group which exceeds 8% of the
Group’s total assets.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference based upon the guidelines recommended
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the
Company’s annual report and accounts, half-yearly reports
and quarterly reports and to provide advice and comments
thereon to the Board of Directors. The audit committee has
met four times a year to review with management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and to discuss auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters. The audit committee comprises one Non-Executive
Director, namely Mr. LAU, Yu Leung John and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, namely Dr. LO, Ka Shui,
Mr. KUOK, Khoon Ean and Mr. LEUNG Hok Lim (appointed
on 21 January 2005).
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BOARD PRACTICES AND PROCEDURES

The Company has complied with Rules 5.34 to 5.45 of the
GEM Listing Rules concerning board practices and procedures
throughout the year.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2004 have
been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board
LIU, Changle
Chairman

Hong Kong, 10 March 2005
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Auditors’ Report &% BB iR & =

PRICEWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

T 5 K 8 3T 6 E A AT

AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
PHOENIX SATELLITE TELEVISION HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the accounts on pages 74 to 126 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND AUDITORS

The Company’s Directors are responsible for the preparation

of accounts which give a true and fair view. In preparing
accounts which give a true and fair view it is fundamental
thatappropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

[t is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based
on our audit, on those accounts and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not

assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other

person for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of
Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. An audit includes examination,
on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the accounts. It also includes an assessment
of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
Directors in the preparation of the accounts and of whether
the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances
of the Company and of the Group, consistently applied and
adequatelydisclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary
in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance as to whether the accounts are free
from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also
evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the accounts. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion the accounts give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2004 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group
for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in

accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 10 March 2005
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31 December 2004 #HZE_—FTZTWF+_—A=+—HIFFZ

REVENUE
OPERATING EXPENSES

SELLING, GENERAL AND
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS
OTHER REVENUE
Exchange gain, net

[nterest income, net
Other income, net

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION
AND MINORITY INTERESTS

TAXATION

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE MINORITY
INTERESTS

MINORITY INTERESTS

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO
SHAREHOLDERS

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT, beginning of

year/period

DIVIDENDS

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT,
end of year/period

BASIC EARNINGS/(LOSS)
PER SHARE, Hong Kong cents

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE,
Hong Kong cents

L/ON
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WE - —KRK
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LR (BR)

Hitt A

BE 5 Y 3R
F BN FER
L ONG

BB RO BRRED
BER (BR)

BIE
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LYK R ER

BRRFEMER],
(B#8)

&/ RRER
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F/ P RRER
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BERERETF -
Al
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Note(s)
k23

Sl

31

5,25

Six months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2004 2003
BE-TEMF HE-TIF
t=A=+-B t=A=t1—A
ILEE LE7NEA
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

(note 32)

(Hrz£32)

1,113,048 350,347
(828,449) (326,318)
(146,063) (68,608)
138,536 (44,579)
1,927 834

6,486 1,981
9,105 5,143
17,518 7,958
156,054 (36,621)
(4,826) (2,559)
151,228 (39,180)
(734) 314
150,494 (38,866)
(612,471) (573,605)
(461,977) (612,471)
3.05 (0.79)

3.04 N/A i@ A




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET HSR&EEEER
As at 31 December 2004 R-—ZEZMmME+—-H=+—H

Current assets

Cash and bank balances
Accounts receivable, net
Prepayments, deposits and

other receivables
Inventories

Amounts due from related companies
Self-produced programmes
Purchased programme and film rights,

net, current portion
Profits tax recoverable

Non-current assets

Purchased programme and film rights,

net
Fixed assets, net

Property deposit and development costs
Investment in an associated company
Interest in a jointly controlled entity

Other investments
Deferred tax assets

Total assets

RBEE

B MERTTIK
FEW AR TR
BNRIER - B
N EL R IR
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HEE — R
REIFHIEA

FRBEE

BARE RER
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B & B
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HEE

Note
Hie

29
10

11
12
13

14

14
5
16
17
18
19
26

2004 2003
—gEmE  —TI=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FHETE
411,482 388,869
98,397 32,438
351,005 277,651
8,751 9,187
507 223
10,652 11,337
11,665 9,259
384 -
892,843 728,964
18,402 24,133
54,869 62,607
62,515 61,120
472 472
53,461 -
30 743
189,749 149,075
1,082,592 878,039
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

As at 31 December 2004 R—ZFZE/E+—H=4+—H

Current liabilities
Accounts payable, other
payables and accruals

Deferred income

Amounts due to related companies
Profits tax payable

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Minority interests

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

RBAE
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HEERRRES

Approved by the Board of Directors on 10 March 2005 and

signed on behalf of the Board by

LIU, Changle 2|
Director %

RAREERER (A)

2004 2003
—gEmE  —TI=

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

Wizt FRT TR

21 165,078 96,432

38,914 52,420

13 8,085 9,982

- 5,939

212,077 164,773

26 30 743

212,107 165,516

6,837 6,103

23 493,680 493,173

25 369,968 213,247

863,648 706,420

1,082,592 878,039

K-BBREF=ATAEEFREB Lo

TEFREEFREE

GUTHRIE, Michelle Lee
Director &%



BALANCE SHEET XE&ER

As at 31 December 2004 R—ZFZE/E+—H=4+—H

Current asset
Cash and bank balances

Non-current asset
Interests in subsidiaries

Total assets

Current liability
Other payables and accruals

Total liability

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liability and shareholders’ equity

Approved by the Board of Directors on 10 March 2005 and
signed on behalf of the Board by

LIU, Changle 2| %
Director %

2004 2003
—gEmE  —FT=
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Wizt FRT TR
HBEE
e RBAIEH 6,302 878
ERBEE
RHBARZ 20 1,276,312 1,276,740
waE 1,282,614 1,277,618
FB A
S OR R AR BOR 154 130
nak 154 130
e
B 23 493,680 493,173
e 25 788,780 784,315
G 1,282,460 1,277,483
8RR IR 1,282,614 1,277,618
RoTEAT=A+AREERBE - L
TEERREFREE

GUTHRIE, Michelle Lee
Director &%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY SEH#EREER
For the year ended 31 December 2004 #HZE_—FTZTWF+_—A=+—HIFFZ

Total equity at the beginning of
the year/period

Exchange differences arising on translation
of the financial statements of
foreign subsidiaries

Exercise of share options

Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders

Total equity at the end of the year/period

&/ PR e

WEBINHB A
TSR ELEH
EHER

{TiEfERE

BRREERN, (BR)

F /iR ErEs

Six months

Year ended ended

31 December 31 December

2004 2003

BE-FTME  HZ-TI-F
t=A=+-B t=A=t1—A

ILEE LE7NEA

Note(s) HK$’000 HK$'000
{023 FET FAT
706,420 745,208

25 1,325 78
2SN 5,409 -
150,494 (38,866)

863,648 706,420




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT HZRAeBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2004 #Z—=F

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net cash inflow/(outflow)
from operations
Hong Kong taxation paid
Overseas taxation paid

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Increase in property deposit and
development costs
Purchase of fixed assets
Purchase of programme and film rights
Disposal of subsidiaries
Interest in a jointly controlled entity
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets
Increase in other non-current assets
Purchase of other investments
Proceeds from disposals of
other investments
Interest received
Income from other investments
Interest paid

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) BEFORE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from exercise of share options

NET CASH INFLOW FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
beginning of year/period

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE
CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
end of year/period

Note
{023

R ERTE
e E SRS N
(i) S 28
ERAEANIE
BEEINEIE

REEBEHRERA
OfRH) FH

REEE
MEEE RER
PN N
BABREEE
B8 A B0 B K& ERhRAE
T E A A
R EEFNE SIS 2 2 s
& EE EES A
H 3R ENE AN
BAEMEE
& EhiR &
FriS I8
2 HFILE
ﬁ{ﬂl?ﬁﬁzqﬁlﬁ?
2RFLE

REZBDRER
R

mEE B A EE%I)ILA/
(R i) F#E

BMEED
1T FEBAEFTIS IR

BMETDHRS
TN FHE

ReERASEEEM
(B2)

F /B
REkBEEE

ExREFHTE

F B
REkBEEE

FWEF—A="+—HIFFE

Six months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2004 2003
BE_ZZTNFE HE-TT-F
+=HA=+—H +-A=t+—H
ILEE LENEA
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FAT
(note 32)
(KizE 32)
111,973 (25,641)
(10,794) (1,337)
(355) (9)
100,824 (26,987)
(1,395) =
(16,761) (3,341)
(20,414) 22172)
- 2,032
= (472)
179 266
= (420)
(84,411) =
29,986 -
6,489 1,984
1,822 -
(3) ©)
(84,508) (12,166)
16,316 (39,153)
5,409 -
5,409 -
21,725 (39,153)
388,869 428,039
888 (17)
411,482 388,869

@

~
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Notes to the Accounts B % ¥R = Fff =

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these accounts are set out below:

(a)

(b)

Change of financial year end

On 8 January 2004, the Company changed its
financial year end from 30 June to 31 December.
The Directors consider the reason for the change
of financial year end is to align the Group’s business
cycle with that of its advertising customers, and the
agents who represent them, which normally have a
year end on 31 December and determine their
advertising budgets and operate on a calendar year
basis.

As a result of the change of financial year end from
30 June to 31 December, the comparatives for the
consolidated profit and loss account, consolidated
statement of changes in equity, consolidated cash
flow statement and the related notes may not be
comparable.

Basis of preparation and accounting policies
The accounts have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and comply with accounting standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The HKICPA has issued a number of new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“new
HKFRSs”) which are effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2005. The
Group has not early adopted these new HKFRSs in
the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2004. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these
new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new HKFRSs would have a significant
impact on its results of operations and financial
position.

FTEESTHER
PRI ST SRR RM 2 B ST
KEHIWAT :

(a)

BRI BFEER
RZZZNFE—AN\B - ARAHEHE
MR EHRSNA=TEERR T
A=1—R - EER/ENVBF#HE
B 8 R A s SR B R A A R
HESEP RARMANKIER
(—BAUNTZA=+—BEFER
NEFRIREMPINESTAE R E
&) °

MR FEEBRH AN =1T AR
T HA=+—H R RSR  &Fa
BaZERX ReRSRERNEMH
IR L BB F RS AT LB -

RUEER BT HE

AP BHRIBRIBER B RRNEFTR
Rip%  WHREB G AGHEM
EVRETER - AMTERKRTIRIBE S
RAE IR EL -

BEGF A AG T EME THNLHL
BRI BB IS R (BB
BERRER) RBEEGHRE - IR
—ERRF R ARAERRZE
SHRAR - AREREE—TTX
FrZA=t—BUEFEZHBRE
IR PR AL R R B TS R R
R - REE D R SNEE
ISR IRER 2B - TR RS
Bt EHE BN SR REN ST L H
LEXELUWBERNEREATE -



1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Group accounting

(1)

Consolidation

The consolidated accounts include the
accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are
those entities in which the Company, directly
or indirectly, controls more than one half of
the voting power; has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies; to appoint or
remove the members of the board of directors;
or to cast majority of votes at the meeting of
the board of directors.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated profit and loss account from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions and
balances within the Group are eliminated on
consolidation.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary
represents the difference between the
proceeds of the sale and the Group’s share of
its net assets together with any unamortised
goodwill or goodwill taken to reserves and
which was not previously charged or
recognised in the consolidated profit and loss
account.

Minority interests represent the interests of
outside shareholders in the operating results
and net assets of subsidiaries.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less provision for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

1.

TEEHBE(#F)
EER

(c)

(i)

HREMBEHE

R BRREBARFLE
MEARESZET—A=+—H
I TSR - MEBRR AR
FE SR EREGER &
R ARAEMBREER
R AIEZEABREEEN
8 INEFEEXLBEAK

I RERER -

RERYBHHENHTER R
BB TR A M A IR
BEHEARA ML RFES
BRME) St AR BER

AEBASQRBEHN—EKR
R 5 RERE RS M BREK
R §H

= P B A Bl e U e s BT 1R )Y
B EMSRIBEREE Y
HOBE S A A 1 R 3
ZYEFARBZBRENE
B MAMERLARGNER
BERERMRHAER

BB SR To 35N AR
D B B R T A
rflRs -

RARBNEERER @ KB
REVIRE THE R A HIRR R E RS
BEEIIR - ARFIREEK
Ko e e B AT BT & R

S

Bl

=&
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(c) Group accounting (Continued)
(i) Joint venture

(iir)

(iv)

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement
whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity which is
subject to joint control and none of the
participating parties has unilateral control over
the economic activity.

The consolidated profit and loss account
includes the Group’s share of the results of a
jointly controlled entity, and the consolidated
balance sheet includes the Group’s share of
the net assets of the jointly controlled entity
and goodwill/negative goodwill (net of
accumulated amortisation) on acquisition.

Associated company

An associated company is a company, not
being a subsidiary or a joint venture, in which
an equity interest is held for the long-term and
significant influence is exercised in its
management.

The consolidated profit and loss account
includes the Group’s share of the results of
an associated company for the year, and the
consolidated balance sheet includes the
Group’s share of the net assets of the
associated company.

Equity accounting is discontinued when the
carrying amount of the investment in the
associated company reaches zero, unless the
Group has incurred obligations or guaranteed
obligations in respect of the associated
company.

Translation of foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated at exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Assets and liabilities
expressed in foreign currencies at the balance
sheet date are translated at rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange
differences arising in these cases are dealt with
in the profit and loss account.

The balance sheets of subsidiaries, an
associated company and a jointly controlled
entity expressed in foreign currencies are
translated at the rates of exchange ruling at
the balance sheet date whilst the profit and
loss is translated at an average rate. Exchange
differences are dealt with as a movement in
reserves.

1.

FEERERER(F)
SEE (@)

(c)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

=R
BRECER—HAHNTH /@
AREBREMITARTETE
PRS- MR RS2
HREES - WE— RS EET
BRI R B IR B E iR
i o

ReERREREARERGH
FEHIERHNES  HReEE
BERUBEAEEEE KR
EHERNFEERRBES
HEEAnE (BN REE
) °

BEAT
BEATARNBLRRA S
BHI) - KBS RIS
MIBE - UHHERAEEA
HENAT -

FABRRREBRASEEEE
BRRNAERE  MERE
ERERABHEAS B R
BREIMEERE -

EREQRINKREREERS
By ETBRAERES
& RRIFEEBLZE E AR
B AR AR R AT

o

I
INERARIR 5+ 19RR
ZEBNEXRFTE - REEHR
INERRR B E R A F R
REZEXFEH - MULELR
R BEDR ABRR

MIBAR - BEARRARE
HERUINEBRRNEERAR
RIOREZ BMEXFE - M
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Fixed assets
(i) Fixed assets, comprising leasehold
improvements, furniture and fixtures,
broadcast operations and other equipment
and motor vehicles are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Fixed assets are depreciated at rates sufficient
to write off their costs less accumulated
impairment losses over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements

HEWMEEE

Furniture and fixtures

BN EE

Broadcast operations and other equipment
R 8 R 3

Motor vehicles

E

(i) Impairment and gain or loss on sale

At each balance sheet date, both internal and
external sources of information are considered
to assess whether there is any indication that
assets included in fixed assets are impaired.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to
reduce the asset to its recoverable amount.
Such impairment losses are recognised in the
profit and loss account.

The gain or loss on disposal of a fixed asset is
the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in the profit and loss
account.

(e) Property deposit and development costs
Property deposit and development costs are carried
at cost which include the renovation expenditure
incurred and other direct costs attributable to the
development to bring the property to its intended
use.

Property deposit and development costs are not
depreciated until such time the property is ready
for its intended use.

1.

TESHERE (&)
BEE&E

(d)

(i)

AEEEEEE (BEHEYME
Kig  BMMEE - BEEE
Ko Bipth 3R 4 KO BE) TH IR A
BRBITERZBREERES

BIEBEETIABELE @ R
AR A ET AT 68 A F BRI 8H E X
NG R B R E B R F X4
E-IEZMFEFRET :

15% or over the terms of the leases

15% Bk %1 40 4F Hf
15% — 20%

15% — 20%

20%

20%

20%

20%

(i) JRERRM &R o Bk 15

EEFHEEH  BEEEERN
MEERE S BSBEAMEINR
FESHNEN  IRZFEE
BEFEER o WENRBATRLE
BEEHBRAM  AEEEAK
BEE @ RESERBR TR
BEEBRARNKEERELRLR]
WEE(E - thFRERIRER
BmRAR e

& B A 2 0 e sl B 1R 7
JIBRBRRA - HEBTEE
EMW BRI HEMFK
ANFHEEEERMENZE -

MERE R BERAE

MELE RBERRATHZRATER -

ZRABIREZ Y FEEBREREZ
BREHMEEZBERS REME
BB ©

Mz A EE B E FIER - MR
ERBERRATE TUFE -
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)]

(g)

(h)

()

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of assets remain with the leasing
company are accounted for as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases net of any
incentives received from the leasing company are
charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-
line basis over the lease periods.

Purchased programme and film rights
Purchased programme and film rights and the
related accruals are recorded at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. The cost of purchased programme and film
rights is charged to the profit and loss account either
on the first and second showing of such purchased
programme and film rights or amortised over the
licence period if the licence allows multiple
showings within the licence period. Purchased
programme and film rights with a remaining licence
period of twelve months or less are classified as
current assets.

Self-produced programmes

Self-produced programmes represent programmes
under production and are stated at cost less
provision for diminution. Cost comprises direct
production expenditures and an appropriate portion
of production overheads. Programmes in production
that are abandoned are written off to the profit and
loss account immediately or when the revenue to
be generated by these programmes is determined
to be lower than originally budgeted the cost is
written down to a realisable value. Completed
programmes will be broadcast over a short period
of time and these costs are charged to the profit
and loss account in accordance with a formula
computed to write off the cost over the broadcast
period.

Other investments

Other investments are carried at fair value by an
independent financial advisor. At each balance
sheet date, the net unrealised gains or losses arising
from the changes in fair value of other investments
are recognised in the profit and loss account. Profits
or losses on disposal of other investments,
representing the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amounts, are recognised
in the profit and loss account as they arise.

Income from other investments is recognised when
the right to receive payment is established.

1.

®

(h)

TESHERE (&)
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

(k)

0]

(m)

(n)

(o)

Inventories

Inventories, comprising decoder devices and
satellite receivers, are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Cost, calculated on the first-in, first-out basis,
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition. Net
realisable value is determined on the basis of
anticipated sales proceeds less estimated selling
expenses.

Accounts receivable
Provision is made against accounts receivable to
the extent they are considered to be doubtful.
Accounts receivable in the balance sheet are stated
net of such provision.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the
balance sheet at cost. For the purposes of the cash
flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash
investments with a maturity of three months or less
from date of investment.

Deferred income

Deferred income represents advertising revenue
and subscription revenue received in advance from
third party customers.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

Employee benefits

(i)  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability
for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity or paternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

TESHERE (&)

)

(m)

(o)

K
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FUBAR B R BR A U AR SR - 15 he B
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BB BRI R -
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 1. TEEFBE (£)
(o) Employee benefits (Continued) (o) EEEA (&)
(i) Bonus plans (i)  7TEALETZ

2 ®

a

Notes to the Accounts B % ¥R = Fff =

The expected bonus payments are recognised
as a liability when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of
services rendered by employees and a reliable
estimate of the obligation can be made.

Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to be
settled within 12 months and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when they
are settled.

(iii) Pension obligations

The Group operates defined contribution
retirement schemes for the Hong Kong
employees based on local laws and
regulations. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit schemes costs charged to
the profit and loss account represent
contributions payable by the Group to the
funds.

The Group’s contributions to the defined
contribution retirement schemes are expensed
as incurred and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the
schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds.

Pursuant to the relevant local regulations of
the countries where the overseas subsidiaries
of the Group are located, these subsidiaries
participate in respective government
retirement benefit schemes and/or setting its
own retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) whereby they are required to
contribute to the Schemes to fund the
retirement benefits of the eligible employees.
Contributions made to the Schemes are
calculated either based on certain percentages
of the applicable payroll costs or fixed sums
for each employee with reference to a salary
scale, as stipulated under the requirements
in the respective countries. The Group has no
further obligation beyond the required
contributions. The contributions under the
Schemes are charged to the profit and loss
account as incurred.

(iii)

TAEASZ T EVFEAT TH A 7N 5 B 78
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RiERmEE o

TEALFTEIM B EEME N+ =
EAREE - LRBEENE
BRSNSt E -

BUITEFE

AEBIREEHEDINARD -
REBEREEEBRHETENK
A8l - REE KRB mEBIE
HEOERTIRIBREENELH
e R —A DA E - RiB&
RACRAR KB E IR A T
BAKEREMNTESOMHN -

AR5 B 7 E R R ARG BIME
&Y R TR EE A B 51 R R
X WIAZBEGH R ATEER
FHEIMZ SR B M BO U R
R - GBI EET N RALE
BV E E D 5 R ATB S B IR A
EHAB -

RIBAEEGINGE R R TE
BROEBERBR - 1t FH
BAR2EE8NBITRARE
R8I &3k B ITRILR IR
MEHE (TBREETE)) - ButE
BB ARAREBEAE
B 1% B e R R4 A 1B it
K o AR EIEL M EKTY
BEBEMRERBERNF S
RARETAD L R2REFR
RIEREREEINGEFE -
BRETZAERSN - AR B
—SHREE - RIEFHE
EHERNELR B BER
HERACER ©



1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv) Equity compensation benefits
Pursuant to written resolutions of the
shareholders of the Company dated 7 June
2000, two share option schemes of the
Company were approved by the shareholders
of the Company, namely Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and Share Option Scheme. The
options are granted and exercisable in
accordance with the terms set out in the
relevant schemes and no compensation cost
is recognised. When the options are exercised,
the proceeds received net of any transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium account.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the accounts. The
principal temporary differences arise from
depreciation on fixed assets, prepayments of
purchased programme and film rights and tax
losses carried forward. Taxation rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
are used to determine deferred taxation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable
that an outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the accounts. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so
that an outflow is probable, it will then be recognised
as a provision.
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue mainly represents income from advertising
sales and subscription sales.

(r)

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with a transaction will flow to the Group
and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue and other income are
recognised on the following bases:

(1)

(ii)

(iir)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Advertising revenue

Advertising revenue represents the gross value
of advertisements broadcast and is recognised
when the relevant advertisements are
broadcast.

Subscription revenue

Subscription revenue received or receivable
from the cable distributors or agents is
amortised on a time proportion basis.
Unamortised portion is classified as deferred
income.

Magazine advertising revenue

Magazine advertising revenue represents the
gross value of advertisements printed in the
magazines and is recognised when the
magazine is published.

Magazine subscription/circulation revenue
Magazine subscription or circulation revenue
represents subscription or circulation money
received or receivable from magazine
customers and is recognised when the
respective magazine is dispatched or sold.

Sales of decoder devices and satellite receivers
Revenue from sales of decoder devices and
satellite receivers is recognised on the transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered to customers and the title
has passed.

Interest income

Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised on a time proportion basis on the
principal outstanding and at the rate
applicable.

1.

(r)

TESHERE (&)
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1. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting, the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting
format and geographical segment as the secondary
reporting format.

Unallocated expenses represent corporate
expenses. Segment assets consist primarily of fixed
assets, inventories, receivables and operating cash.
Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities.
Capital expenditure comprises additions to fixed
assets, interest in a jointly controlled entity and other
non-current assets.

In respect of geographical segment reporting,
advertising sales or subscription sales are based
on the country in which the customer is located.
Total assets and capital expenditure are based on
the country where the assets are located.

1.

TESHERE (&)

(s)

DEBE
REAEENARABHRE - AEE
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group is principally engaged in satellite television
broadcasting activities. An analysis of the Group’s

revenue by nature is as follows:

Revenue
Advertising sales
Subscription sales
Magazine advertising and
subscription or circulation sales
Others

Other revenue
Exchange gain, net
Interest income, net
Sales of programmes
Income from other

investments, net
Others

Total revenue

WA

EEHE

W & A

MRS MBS
BT

Hity

H A
PEE 33 W e 9 AR
M B AR
ENEHE
HAb & WA

Hity

A

Primary reporting format — business segments
The Group is organised into four main business segments

including:

(i)  Television broadcasting — broadcasting of television

programmes and commercials;

(ii)  Programme production and ancillary services;

(iii) Internet services — provision of website portal; and

(iv) Other activities — merchandising services, magazine
publication and distribution, and other related

Services.

2.

BWARDTEEH
AEENTIEZEBREEERERE -
REBSFHAEBBRASFTT

Six months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2004 2003
BE-_ZTTNF HE_TT-F
+—A=+—H +=ZA=+—H
IEFE 1E7~E A
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
1,030,219 316,011
41,920 22,165
14,664 EHOILE!
26,245 7,158
1,113,048 350,347
1,927 834

6,486 1,981

1,494 2,431

858 -

6,753 2,712
17,518 7,958
1,130,566 358,305

FEREHRHEX -EBI R
AEEBRFURERXBOE B ¢

(if)
(iif)

(iv)

BRERE-ERHA MESERE

£5 B BUE R SR RTS

EERERY — REAPIREL - R

H % —EmiRi - Mtk %

TTANE A BARTS -



REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Primary reporting format — business segments

(Continued)

Revenue
External sales
Inter-segment sales

Total revenue

Segment results

Unallocated expenses (Note a) XAEEFR (Ffia)

Profit before taxation and
minority interests

Taxation

Profit before minority
interests

Minority interests

Profit attributable to
shareholders

Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure

LON
HHE
PRRHE

B

GEES

REROBER

HEZ AT
HA

BOBREES

i
PEBEER
BRI
HEEE
RAEAE
waE

PEAE

AAERR

BaE

BAXH

Unallocated capital expenditure KB E AR

Depreciation

Amortisation of purchased
programme and film rights

e

BASGRER
B EA

2. WARSEESN (&)

TEEHBA -EXBIR| @)

Year ended 31 December 2004
HE-ZIME+-_A=1-HLEE

Programme
production
Television  and ancillary Internet Other  Intersegment
broadcasting services services activities  elimination Group
HERER
ERER XERE  ERPRE Al 2EEHE rEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER TER
1,072,138 3,407 6,295 31,208 - 1,113,048
- 23,812 - - (23,812) -
1,072,138 27,219 6,295 31,208 (23,812) 1,113,048
274,477 1,733 (2,450) 430 - 274,190
(118,136)
156,054
(4,826)
151,228
(734)
150,494
90,577 56,674 25,824 7,214 - 180,289
902,303
1,082,592
(36,593) (1,762) (15,288) (10,361) - (64,004)
(148,103)
(212,107)
10,436 1,455 785 - - 12,676
4,085
16,761
(19,557) (4,396) (694) (2) - (24,649)
(23,169) - = = - (23,169)

°l®
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Primary reporting format — business segments

(Continued)

Revenue
External sales
Inter-segment sales

Total revenue

Segment results

Six months ended 31 December 2003
BE-ZE=E+-A=+-RAILAEA

WARDEES (&

TEEHBA -EXBIR| @)

Unallocated expenses (Note a) £AEER (Fia)

Loss before taxation and
minority interests
Taxation

Loss before minority
interests
Minority interests

Loss attributable to
shareholders

Segment assets
Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabilities
Unallocated liabilities

Total liabilities

Capital expenditure
Unallocated capital
expenditure

Depreciation

Amortisation of purchased
programme and film rights

Programme
production
and Inter-
Television ancillary segment
broadcasting services elimination Group
R RER
ERER S ERS k- lEsfs AEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET T TET T
(note 32)
(fifz£32)
LON
HOMEE 338,176 2,611 - 350,347
PERHE = 9,289 (9,289) =
ZIA 338,176 11,900 (9,289) 350,347
PEEE 9,627 26 - 5,464
(42,085)
BERDEBRE
EhiBR (36,621)
HE (2,559)
BOURRER
AIER (39,180)
SERRER 314
R ER
(38,866)
NEEE 123,008 33,378 - 194,596
AOREE 683,443
BEE 878,039
PEER (80,979) (1,474) = (93,906)
AOEAE (71,610)
BE% (165,516)
EAR%i 879 91 - 1,063
AAEER
v 3,170
4,233
e (8,853) (1,234) = (10,565)
BALA R
EYRERH (15,664) = = (15,664)



REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Primary reporting format — business segments
(Continued)

Note:

(a) Unallocated expenses represent primarily:

- corporate staff costs;

- office rental;

- general administrative expenses; and

- marketing and advertising expenses that relate to
the Group as a whole.

Secondary reporting format — geographical segments

PRC (including Hong Kong) FE (BIEERE)
United States e
Europe BOM
Other countries in the Asia Hith 26 K@ B

Pacific Region

PRC (including Hong Kong) FE (BIEEE)
United States e
Europe B
Other countries in the Asia HithZe KRB

Pacific Region

MARDBEER (£
FTESHEN -EBSE (B
Kt
(a) FAOBEAEEA:
— HEEBTIMKA
- BAEHEE:
- —HITBREX R
— HASEEBRENMSHEERE
HRX -
FE2HEX - HESE

Year ended 31 December 2004
BE-_ZZENFE+-A=+—HLEE

Total Capital

Turnover assets expenditure
S BEE BEARXH
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FETT FETT FETT
1,049,589 1,037,382 10,364
31,830 27,325 6,267
10,878 15,937 99
20,751 1,948 31
1,113,048 1,082,592 16,761

Six months ended 31 December 2003
HE_EE=F+_A=+—H0x#EA

Total Capital

Turnover assets  expenditure
X BEE N
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
316,904 835,406 3,833
10,912 23,233 225
5,693 17,202 24
16,838 2,198 151
350,347 878,039 4,233

2|®
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3.

PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS &
Profit/(loss) from operations is stated after charging the

following:

Charging:

Amortisation costs of purchased

programme and film rights

Production costs of self-produced

programmes

Transponder rental (note 31(b), (0))

Provision for doubtful debts

Staff costs, including Directors’

emoluments (note 8)

Operating lease rental in respect of

— Directors’ quarters

— land and buildings of third parties

Cost of inventories sold
Depreciation of fixed assets

Loss on disposal of fixed assets

Auditors’ remuneration

i
AR R B AE
325

8 5% B 4

Lz

ERRES HiF31(b) * (0)
RREAE
BINA(REESHG)
(Ki:+8)
ERERAY
—EEES
—F=EN T RETF
EETFERA
EEEENE
HEEEEERE
Z 2R &

gEBRAN (BB

4

Year ended

31 December
2004
BE-_ZTTNF
+=ZBA=+—H
ILFE
HK$°000
FET

23,169

91,095
16,627
22,960

220,798

923
13,179
1,363
24,649
108
1,837

R (BE) KM% T 5% B& &

Six months
ended

31 December
2003
BE_TT=F
+=—A=+—~H
1E75{E A
HK$'000
FET

15,664

57,914
8,273
17,409

99,672

462
6,412
1,560

10,565
87
1,218




TAXATION 4.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
17.5% (six months ended 31 December 2003: 17.5%)
on the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation
on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated profit
and loss account represents:

Current taxation: WAMIA :
— Hong Kong profits tax —BBREH
— Overseas taxes — G5 IR
— Over-provisions of Hong Kong —RIEE 2 BBHER
profits tax in the prior year BRI
Deferred taxation (note 26) RIEFIA (F15%26)

H E

BB NGB RN AR AR ERFR -
LA17.5% (EE T2 =F+=-_H=+—H
LEARMEA - 17.5%) Fi B < G INEH]FE
SFRIB TR IR AR B MY [ AT B ER B s A1)
BAREEESERRAEATRTE -

REREBERMFRBIRTIIE :

Six months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2004 2003

BE-BRTNE HE_TT=F
s et gl el

LEFE 1E7]fEA
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T&7T
5,705 2,550
355 9
(1,234) 3
4,826 205159

@

Notes to the Accounts Bf % 3R % Ff 5%



@

a

Notes to the Accounts B % ¥R = Fff =

(&)

TAXATION (Continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit/(loss) before taxation
and minority interests differs from the theoretical amount

4. HBiE (£&)

PRIER AR AN SR B AR AR P A 2R RO MY R T S8 2RAR
BASEBRT R DB RERATRHM,

that would arise using the taxation rate of country the (& 18) 5T ErF TH R IRk 5 2 = 240
Company operates as follows: Nk
Six months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2004 2003
BE-TTWF HEZTT=F
t=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+—H
LFE LEAEA
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit/(loss) before taxation and B o D SR R A 2 Al
minority interests S (EE) 156,054 (36,621)
Calculated at a taxation rate of 17.5% #RIEFR17.5% &
(six months ended 31 December HEZZZ=F+=A
2003: 17.5%) = ElN a7 (YA 5 90) 27,309 (6,409)
Income not subject to taxation HEZRUA (7,027) (4,016)
Expenses not deductible for A Bh R
taxation purposes IR A 2 13,431 7,351
Tax losses not recognised RERTIESE 5,946 9,410
Utilisation of previously unrecognised &) 5E R AR
tax losses HiIE R 1R (33,444) (4,044)
Provision for overseas operations BN B 355 9
Over-provisions in the prior year AIEREBBNETBERE (1,234) -
Others Hfth (510) 258
Taxation charge RIS H 4,826 2,559
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS RREMSLE R

The loss attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the
accounts of the Company to the extent of HK$437,000
(six months ended 31 December 2003: HK$342,000).

DIVIDENDS

No dividend had been paid or declared by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2004 (six months
ended 31 December 2003: Nil).

At a Board of Directors meeting held on 10 March 2005,
the Directors proposed a final dividend of HK$0.01 per
share. This proposed dividend has not been reflected as
a dividend payable in the accounts.

5 e (L 518437, 0008 T (HE—22 =
F+—HA=+—HI1E/EA : 342,000/
T0) BEFARRA B Z BATS 3R o

B’ 2

RARRIRBE_ZTTNF A= + El
JJ:@J*WI[E/JEHY%/JEHQ (B ZE
E=F+-_A=+—HILAHEA : E)

R-ZZhF=-A+RARTZEETEER
£ EEEERERPREEK0.018
TC ° BRI E R B AR B HRE D
SVERRRLE. ©



EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings/(loss) per share is based
on consolidated profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$150,494,000 (six months ended 31 December
2003: loss of HK$38,866,000), and the 4,934,946,000
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
during the year ended 31 December 2004 (six months
ended 31 December 2003: 4,931,730,000).

Diluted earnings per share is based on the
4,934,946,000 ordinary shares which is the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during 2004
plus the weighted average number of 12,204,000
ordinary shares deemed to be issued at no consideration
if all outstanding options had been exercised. No diluted
loss per share for the six months ended 31 December
2003 is presented as the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options would have had an anti-dilutive
effect on loss per share during the six months ended 31
December 2003.

STAFF COSTS, INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS

Wages, salaries and other allowances T& - B & EfbE8L

Unutilised annual leave RAFER

Pension costs — defined contribution BRIKEAAR — FEREHEHE]
plans, net of forfeited contributions — (FIER R Y 2R)

BEREAN(FA)
BREARR (BB RESRE—FT
ME+—A=+—HILFEANNRRERN
SREE 150,494,000 T (HE-ZE=
F+_A=+—HILA<EA : BiE
38,866,000/%7T) &2 21T .2 F AR ANHE
TR 254,934,946,000 1 (BE-ZTE=
F+_-_A=+—8 1t ~@EA
4,931,730,000/%) 5T & -

TR ESE R T TR 154,934,946,000 A%
BREE  HAR _STNFREETYE
BROMEFEE - BN EREHB A
TEM B RIS EAEE S NITEmAESE
1THYE IBAR INAE 19 £012,204,000 f% X 38
BRETE o RRTTIEARRD AR AT AR AE
EHEBE-_TT=F+=-A=1+—HIt~
BRARNNESREBEELAREETE  Flt
WERIHEE - TT=F+-_A=1+—H
LE7N A AR EES R BRI ETE -

EIRAX(BREEH=)

Six months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2004 2003

BE-STTNE HE_TT=F
b Al SR T e

LEFE 1E7]MEA
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T8t
210,232 91,332
347 743
10,219 7,597
220,798 99,672

@
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid/
payable to Directors of the Company during the year/
period are as follows:

Executive Director A: HITESH
Fees e
Salaries e
Discretionary bonus 1B B A TEAL
Quarters s
Other allowance H At 28
Pension fund BRE
Executive Director B: HITESL
Fees e
Salaries e
Discretionary bonus 1B B A fEAL
Housing allowance B EERL
Other allowance H fth )28
Pension fund BRE

During the year ended 31 December 2004, no
emoluments were paid/payable to the Non-
Executive Directors of the Company (six months
ended 31 December 2003: Nil) and approximately
HK$400,000 were paid/payable to two independent
Non-Executive Directors of the Company (six
months ended 31 December 2003: HK$200,000).

9. EERERTHAEME

(a)

EEM=
FR/ BAEARBEE A, FEN
@z

Six months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2004 2003
RE-TIMF HE-_TT=F
t+=A=+-B +=A=t-A
ILFE 1E75{E A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

4,133 2,026

1,800 -

923 462

344 170

413 2,584

7,613 5,242

1,693 833

1,000 -

902 439

141 139

169 83

3,905 1,494

HE_TZTME+—A=+—HIF
EA - WERANARNIENTES
S EMTANE EES T =
F+—-HA=1+—HINEAR: &)
RSB FETTE B S Tt
BB £ 47400,00058 7T (BE —ZF
=F+_A=+—HINEA:
200,000/ 7T) °



9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The emoluments of the Directors (including an
Alternate Director) of the Company fell within the
following bands:

HeeE

Emolument bands

HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000

There was no arrangement under which a Director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year ended 31 December 2004 (six months
ended 31 December 2003: same).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year ended 31
December 2004 include two (six months ended 31
December 2003: two) Executive Directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
in (a) above. The emoluments paid/payable to the
remaining three (six months ended 31 December
2003: three) individuals during the year ended 31
December 2004 are as follows:

Fees we

Salaries e
Discretionary bonus 15 25 U TEAT
Housing allowance B EER

Other allowance H fth) 285
Pension fund BRE

9.

Z78 7T — 1,000,000 7T
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/&7T — 1,500,000/ 7T
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001/&7T — 4,000,000/ 7T
HK$5,000,001 - HK$5,500,000 5,000,001/&7T — 5,500,000/ 7T
HK$7,500,001 — HK$8,000,000 7,500,001%7T — 8,000,000/ 7T

ESRERTHRAEME (&)

(a)

EEMe (@)
MENFTHNBENARRES (B
B—RBEES ABWT

Number of Directors

EEAH
2004 2003
—gEME  —TT=F
8 10
- 1
1 —
1 =

BEEFTNF A=+ HLF
EEE—ZFT=Ft-_H=t—H
XA AR - EFWERRT
MZHEREL R B RELMAME -

AfuEEHAL
HE_ZTNF+—_A=+—HIEF
B AEERUGZETFALTFR 8
EmaBE_ZST=F1+=A= +
—BIEAEA : RMB)MITES

ZHBeE N X (a )%5‘]2’“Tﬁ
BHE_ZTNGF+_A=+—HItF
ERBT=8EHETZ=F1+=
Al =sr=EhleAN(EEN =22 Aarse

R EREOMEnT
Six months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2004 2003
BE_ZTZENE BHE-TT=F
+=A=+—H +ZHA=+—H
ILFE 1E75{E A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
5,077 2,511
3,000 -
2,539 1,222
423 418
509 251
11,548 4,402

@
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 9. EELERITHRAEMS (&)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) BUBRSHFAL )
The emoluments of the remaining three (six months MeNFTIHEENBRT =2 AT
ended 31 December 2003: three) individuals fell BEZZEZT=F+ZHA=1T—HLt
within the following bands: ANEA - =R

Number of individuals

A
Emolument bands & E 2004 2003
—ZTIE —ETT=F
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 7t — 1,500,000 7T =
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T — 2,000,000 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T — 4,000,000/ 7T 2 -
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001% 7T — 4,500,000 7T 1 —
During the year/period, no emoluments or incentive FRHA - WERNAMNESHAL
payments were paid or payable to any Director or R ERIE ok E MR B T SER
the other employees amongst the five highest paid i< Sk BB F1E - LAMERIIAAREE
individuals as an inducement to join the Group or KBS ERREME
as compensation for loss of office.
10. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET 10. EWER R FE
2004 2003
—ZTIE —EE=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Accounts receivable FEUTBR TR 136,505 72,650
Less: Provision for doubtful debts B REREHE (38,108) (40,212)
98,397 32,438
The Group has appointed an advertising agent in the RNEB R E AREMBE ([FE])ZE—
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) to promote the BERE - #URTBEAKEEASER
sales of the Group’s advertising air-time and programme BEREHE RETE BE) - WEAKERK
sponsorship and collects advertising revenues within the EESWA (RETFEN) - AEE—RER
PRC on behalf of the Group (see note 11). The Group BEATEESNFHIE - G THHEF30
generally requires customers to pay in advance, but HZEHMEEH -
grants a credit period of 30 days to 90 days to some
customers.



10. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE, NET (Continued)

1 8

The ageing analysis of the accounts receivable from
customers is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0£230H

31 - 60 days 31£260H

61 — 90 days 61£290H
91 - 120 days 91£120H
Over 120 days 1208 A E
Less: Provision for doubtful debts o RAREHE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
is an amount of approximately HK$314,763,000 (2003:
HK$252,606,000) owing from an advertising agent,
Shenzhou Television Company Ltd. (“Shenzhou”) in the
PRC. The amount represents advertising revenue
collected, net of expenses incurred by Shenzhou on
behalf of the Group. The balance is unsecured and bears
interests at prevailing bank interest rates. As a result of
the foreign exchange restrictions in the PRC, the
remittances of the amount receivable from Shenzhou to
the Group are not conducted in fixed repayment terms.

The Group has set up a commercial and trust
arrangement with Shenzhou, details of which have been

disclosed in the announcement made by the Company
on 25 September 2002.

The Trust Law in the PRC enacted in recent years has
not laid out specific detailed implementation rules to our
trust arrangement with Shenzhou, therefore the extent
of the enforceability of such arrangement is still unclear.
Although the management recognised that the present
arrangement is the only legally viable arrangement, the
management will continue to monitor and explore
alternatives to improve the situation.

The Directors are of the opinion that the amount owing
from Shenzhou of approximately HK$314,763,000 as
at 31 December 2004 is fully recoverable and no
provision is required.

10. EWABRXZFE (&)

114k

YR PR ERER DATANT

2004 2003
—gEME  —TT=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FHETE
23,642 18,828
16,280 8,690
10,800 5,135
13,163 3,215
72,620 36,782
136,505 72,650
(38,108) (40,212)
98,397 32,438

ENRE B REMERR
1"

TENFIR « e REMBERFERE %
JiE U R BRI 25 AR e AR A R A &) (4
M 1) B FRIB49314,763,000/8 T (— B =
F : 252,606,000 7T) © HFRIE A MUK
KA BRI A E S WA (BHBRIH) o
SRR EIIR IR TIRI TR R - A
PR BB e INGE B | - MU R AN B R IA
WIAEEERPZ A FAEE -

AEEEBMNE T ERERELR
B BREAAAR-SE-FAA-
+ 5 BB R A S PO -

R PR FHREENEEEYES R
INEEFERBET = LB ZERE -
Et - REEBTER LB A FOERITHOEE
o BENEIEE TREIRIT LB AR L
ME—ARMLH  BERERESELEX
MEEAM A ITHOE AR E B BB °

BERE R_EENF+_A=1+—8
1IN AR 2 FRIEHAI314,763,00058 TT#5 7]
EHURE - Ut B/A R B -

@
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12.

13.

14.

INVENTORIES 12. &
2004 2003
—E2NF t
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Decoder devices and satellite receivers 52 Kk @ 25 U8% 8,751 9,187
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO RELATED 13. Bl " ENBEELQIRE

COMPANIES

The outstanding balances with related companies are
aged less than one year and are unsecured, non-interest
bearing and have no fixed repayment terms (2003:
same).

PURCHASED PROGRAMME AND FILM RIGHTS,
NET

Balance, beginning of year/period F¥)],/ B4

Additions EHE
Amortisation B
Disposals and others S R H At
Balance, end of year/period FIR AR ISR
Less: Purchased programme and W BASE ME
film rights
— current portion —REEE

BAEE A BRI Rl DTN — S 2 FEER AR IR
2R &ﬂliﬁ ”Hﬂ (CFE=4%F:
R

14. BABFEREXZREFH

Six months

Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2004 2003

BE_BENE HE _TT=F
TFER=SrAE AR R

LEFE 1E7]fEA
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T8
33,392 B788¢
20,414 12,212
(23,169) (15,664)
(570) (486)
30,067 E8802
R

(11,665) (9,259)
18,402 24,133




15.

FIXED ASSETS, NET

15. Bl E & E & #

Broadcast
Furniture  operations
Leasehold and and other Motor
improvements fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
EEEE
HENE BMR REAM
%1 RE B AE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT
Cost BA
At 1 January 2004 RZZTEFE—F—H 18,472 2,784 96,602 6,219 124,077
Additions 1A 4,429 60 9,377 2,895 16,761
Disposals/Write-off HE /e (221) (18) (147) (376) (762)
Exchange differences [ =5 144 87 781 26 1,038
At 31 December 2004 RZZTWE+=A
= 22,824 2913 106,613 8,764 141,114
Accumulated depreciation EHEITE
At 1 January 2004 RZZEEE—F—H 8,151 1,368 48,960 2,991 61,470
Charge for the year FRHE 3,131 434 19,780 1,304 24.649
Disposals/Write-off HE /e (110) (6) (90) (269) (475)
Exchange differences ERER 53 41 492 15 601
At 31 December 2004 RZZTWE+=A
= LTEE L2205 1,837 69,142 4,041 86,245
Net book value REEE
At 31 December 2004 RZZTEF+ZA
=+—H 11,599 1,076 37,471 4,723 54,869
At 31 December 2003 R-_ZE=4+_A
=+—H 10,321 1,416 47,642 3,228 62,607

@
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16. PROPERTY DEPOSIT AND DEVELOPMENT

COSTS

On 11 June 2001, a subsidiary of the Company entered
into an agreement with JEIITHREF L (The
Shenzhen National Land Planning Bureau)! to acquire
a land use right for a parcel of land situated in Shenzhen,
the PRC, for the development of a building, which
includes a production centre for the Group. The total

consideration for the acquisition was approximately
HK$57,354,000.

During the year ended 30 June 2002, the subsidiary of
the Group transferred the interest in the land use right
to another subsidiary, &Y BEE =GR A 5], a sino-
foreign co-operation company incorporated in the PRC,
in which Phoenix Real Properties Limited (“Real
Properties”) owned 90% equity interest. Real Properties
was a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

Pursuant to the payment terms of the agreement, the
full amount of approximately HK$57,354,000 has been
paid to the &R EIB L F (The Shenzhen National
Land Planning Bureau)! as the cost of the land use rights
acquisition, and was recorded as a land deposit of
Phoenix Group as at 30 June 2003. The increase in value
to HK$62,515,000 as at 31 December 2004 represents
other relevant costs incurred in connection with the
development of the building.

Pursuant to an agreement dated 29 October 2003
entered into by the Group and Oasiscity Limited
(“Oasiscity”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Neo-China
Group (Holdings) Limited (formerly known as “Neo-Tech
Global Limited”), the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), Oasiscity acquired 60% interest
in Real Properties. The acquisition was completed on
13 January 2004.

On the same date, Oasiscity executed a share charge in
favour of the Group, under which it charged a 30% equity
interest in Real Properties, as security for the due
performance of its obligations under the agreement dated
29 October 2003. Pursuant to the agreement, Oasiscity
will be responsible for providing all required financing
for the development of the building and the Group is not
required to provide any further financing for the
development of the building but will be entitled to a
relevant portion of the non-saleable area on completion
of the development, which is expected to have a value

of not less than the current carrying value in its book of
HK$62,515,000 (2003: HK$61,120,000).

I name translated for reference only

16. MERERBEKK

REZFZ—FXA+—H AREMN—FE
B AR BRI ARSI L BHRTEE—
BRI AR BRI 8 1 2b (5 R AE A 173
& MEEREEAEEERAEEY
(BE—EREFR L) - BE L HFERED
ERABXI57,354,00078 7T °

REBEE-_TZ-_FA=TALFER
N2 BRI B B A BIHS Hb 5 PR A DR 2R 82
BTFR—XKMBAR — FIBEBEXER
NA] o AR TI— R AR B LA
SINEPERT] > MALENZEBRENBA
A-BEEXERAF(BEEX) AE
B A H 0% M D AERS o

ZRHZNETRE - EXNTFRYITR
S+ BR 2 P FRIAL A57,354,000 75
T ERWEE T RENER - WK
EE=EXNA=THEARIIERERN L
Wizd - RZTTWNF+_A=+—RHZ
B{EEINZE62,515,0008 7T @ JHEsi &R
IR 2 AR -

BAR AN B 3T E (2R B R A A
(AT (RIZERMERAE]) (HBRHRE
BHERGMAERAR (FMRAT) R E
™) M2 EH BA7 Oasiscity Limited
([Oasiscity VR =ZFZ=F+H=+.H
RIS HI175%  Oasiscityf§ & IEEE B E 2%
H160% 1w o WESEIER T HF—H
+=H%ERK °

REB - Oasiscity 5] 32 —IHARNEE AX
T AHIREE - UL 0 Oasiscityil i E A
HIBEE H30% AR - (EREEE
BITRERPA-_ZET=F+A_+1HB
R AEE AOER - BERZ
Oasiscity#§ & & X 1Bz 2L —1)
FiEEd  ASEHEARRIZEEDE
— I HEMES - ERBERIEE T
BEZEEYNSGIEL EEMBEER -
TEHRYEA 2 BESTORE B Al Z BREE
#4962,515, 0008 (=T =4
61,120,000 7T) °



17. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY

18.

Investment, at cost

BRRAERE

Details of the associated company as at 31 December
2004 were as follows:

Name

1

China Global Television
Limited

China Global Television
Limited

Place and date of Place of
incorporation operation
AL
R A EEHE
British Virgin British Virgin
slands, [slands
18 October 2001
EBRAES SBRAES
T s
apzhvil=

INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

Investment, at cost

BRRARE

Details of the jointly controlled entity as at 31 December
2004 were as follows:

Name

=L

I RBERREERE

LB E

Place and date
of incorporation

S

i 2% B H#

HHERATF] PRC,
27 June 2003

BAER A R
—TT=F

~NAZt++H

17. RBEE QXA ZKRE

2004
—EmE
HK$'000
FBT

2003
ZER=F
HK$’000
FET

R-EENE+ ==+ —AMBEAT
HEMT :

Principal activity

TERH

Dormant

fEe%

Percentage
of equity
interest held
by the Group
AR
iy
ARl

50%

50%

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BEITRAR
Bx/
EMER

Us$2

2%

18. RABEFERB2ES

2004
—EENE
HK$’000
FET

472

2003
—EE=4&

=S T

HK$’000
FHEIT

472

HRAZHEEN —FENF T A=1—

HEVRHBT ¢
Place of Principal
operation activity
EE I TEXER
PRC Dormant
Y mex

Percentage
of equity
interest held
by the Group
rEBFTE
17 R 2=
Bt

40%

40%

@
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19. OTHER INVESTMENTS 19. Htt R &
The Group invested in unlisted securities at a cost of RZZETWFF+—A=+—08 ~&H
approximately HK$54,425,000, with an estimated fair (ZAK AME 4954,425,000% 7T) 5 8 HFE £
value of approximately HK$53,461,000 as at 31 MBEFRENGEFAFEFEBEN R
December 2004 (2003: Nil). 53,461,000/ L (ZTT=4F : ) o

c|®

a

Notes to the Accounts B % ¥R = Fff =

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. Mt~ B #E &
Company
PN
2004 2003
—gTmF —ET=4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost (Note i) LWk - IRACAE (B aE) = =
Amount due from a subsidiary, FEUSH B 2~ mIFRIE F 58
net (Note ii) (i) 1,276,312 1,276,740
1,276,312 1,276,740
Notes: Wi
(i)  Details of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2004 were as () RZZETEF+=—A=+—HHHRBAR
follows: BN ¢
Percentage Issued and
of equity fully paid
Place and date of Place of interest held share capital/
Name incorporation operation Principal activities by the Group registered capital
KRB ERIRARE
AL gy 4 &/
£R WHRAH HELY TEXY ARl ZRER
Hong Kong Phoenix Hong Kong Hong Kong Publishing and 77% HK$100
Weekly Magazine 29 November 1999 distribution
Limited of periodicals
EEEEET & & iR R & T 1% 100%7
BRAR —NWANE T
+-F=thB
Hong Kong Phoenix Hong Kong Hong Kong Dormant 100% HK$2
Satellite Television 19 January 2001
Limited
BBEE A A TEEs 100% 28T
ERBERAR ZTT-F
A+ThA
Phoenix Satellite British Virgin British Virgin Satellite television 100% US$1
Television (InfoNews) Islands Islands broadcasting
Limited 6 September 1999
BEEREAA EBRUES EBRK HEER 100% 1%
BRAR —NWANE #E B
NnARA



20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Details of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2004 were as

follows: (Continued)

Name

##

Phoenix Satellite
Television (B.V.1.)
Holding Limited
(Note a)
£BERAA
(Hista)

Phoenix Satellite
Television (Chinese
Channel) Limited

BEERTXA
BRAR

Phoenix Satellite

Television Company
Limited

ARLA

Phoenix Satellite
Television (Europe)
Limited

BEEREMA
BRAR

Phoenix Satellite
Television
Information Limited

BEEH
BRAR

Phoenix Satellite
Television (Movies)
Limited

BEEEREZA
BRAR

Place and date of
incorporation

RalA
WERAM

British Virgin
Islands
28 April 1998

EEELES
—hANE
MA=T+/\A

British Virgin
Islands

29 June 1998
ERRTES
—WN\E
~NAZTHE

Hong Kong
16 November 1995

5
~AAEE
+-AtrA

British Virgin
Islands

5 July 1999
EBRUES
—hAE
tAER

British Virgin
Islands

1 September 1999
EBRLES
—hAE
hA—H

British Virgin
Islands

26 June 1998
ERRTES
—WNN\E
~NAZtAHE

Place of
operation

EENE
British Virgin

Islands

ABEX
G

British Virgin
Islands

ZBEK
G

Hong Kong

British Virgin
Islands

ZBEK
G

British Virgin
Islands

ABEK
G

British Virgin
Islands
EEEX
#B

20. B R Al X (&)

et - ()

() RZZETEF+—A=+—HHHRBAR

HEWT : (8B

Percentage

of equity

interest held

Principal activities by the Group

KRB

R iER

FTEEY BAK

Investment 100%
holding

RERR 100%

Satellite television 100%
broadcasting

HEER 100%
B

Provision of 100%
management
and related
Services

RER 100%
REBRE

Investment 100%
holding

RERR 100%

Investment 100%
holding

RERR 100%

Satellite television 100%
broadcasting

HEER 100%
3

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BRARAR
&/

ZRER

US$1

1%

US$1

1%

HK$20

0%

US$1

%7

S
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Details of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2004 were as

follows: (Continued)

Name

##

Phoenix Satellite
Television Trademark
Limited
BEERAR

Phoenix Weekly
Magazine (BVI)
Limited

Phoenix Weekly
Magazine (BVI)
Limited

PHOENIXi Investment
Limited

PHOENIXi Investment
Limited

PHOENIXi, Inc.

PHOENIXi, Inc.

Phoenix Satellite
Television
Development
(BVI) Limited

Phoenix Satellite
Television
Development
(BVI) Limited

Place and date of
incorporation

AL
WERAM

British Virgin
Islands

8 January 1996
EBRLES
—MAE
—RAB

British Virgin
Islands

24 January 2000
ABRAER
—EEEE

B

—-A=tmA

British Virgin
Islands

28 October 1999
ERR TS
—WANE
+A=+/\B

The United States
of America

3 June 1999
FHBRARE
—AANE
~AZH

British Virgin
Islands
6 January 2000

B e

-“EETE

—=as

—A7A

Place of
operation

BB

British Virgin
Islands

ABEK
G

British Virgin
Islands

ABEX
G

British Virgin
Islands

ZBEK
G

The United
States of
America
*FIBA
TE

British Virgin
Islands

ABEK
G

20. B AR Al X (&)
HisE - (88)

() R-FE

HEWT : (8B

Principal activities

TERB

Trademark
holding

BERE

Investment
holding

RERR

Investment
holding

RERR

Dormant

Investment
holding

RERR

Percentage
of equity
interest held
by the Group
AEEfE
R iER
Bl

100%

100%

100%

100%

94.3%

94.3%

94.3%

94.3%

100%

100%

ME+—A=+—HNHEAR

Issued and

fully paid

share capital/
registered capital
BRTRAR
&/

ZRER

US$1

1%

Us$1

%7

US$123,976
(Ordinary
shares)

123 97635 T

(588

US$7,500
(Series A
preferred
shares)
750057
(MABER)

Us$0.1

01%T

US$1



20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Details of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2004 were as

follows: (Continued)

Name

##

Phoenix Satellite
Television

Development Limited
EEERER
BRAR

PCNE Holdings Limited

PCNE Holdings
Limited

Phoenix Satellite
Television (Taiwan)
Limited

EREER D
BRAR

Phoenix Satellite
Television (Universal)
Limited

Phoenix Satellite
Television (Universal)
Limited

Phoenix Satellite
Television
(U.S.) Inc.

Phoenix Satellite
Television
(US.) Inc.

Phoenix Chinese News
& Entertainment
Limited (note b)

Phoenix Chinese News
& Entertainment
Limited (Ff3#b)

Place and date of
incorporation

RalA
WERAM

Hong Kong
16 April 1999

i
—ANNE
mA+<E

British Virgin
Islands

5 January 2000
ABRLES
ZZTTE

—HaA

British Virgin
Islands

31 August 2000
EBRLES
“T3TF
NA=1+-H

British Virgin
Islands

18 July 2000
ERETES
“T3TF
+A+AR

The United

States of

America

7 September 2000
FRAZE
“ZTTE
NA+tE

The United Kingdom
12 November 1990

P
“hNEF
t-A+zH

Place of
operation

BB

Hong Kong

&R

British Virgin
Islands

ABEK
G

British Virgin
Islands

ZBRL
G

British Virgin
Islands

ABEK
G

The United
States of
America

eI

o

>
=

The United
Kingdom

R

20. B R Al X (&)
HisE : (48)

() RZZETEF+—A=+—HHHRBAR
BT - (&)

Percentage Issued and
of equity fully paid
interest held share capital/

Principal activities by the Group registered capital
KRB BERTRAR
gy 4 &/
FTEEY Bl HEA
Investment 100% HK$2
holding
REER 100% 28T
Investment 70% US$1,000
holding
REER 70% 1,000%7
Programme 100% US$1
production
RS 100% 1%
Investment 100% US$1
holding
REER 100% 1%
Provision of 100% Uss$1
management and
promotional
related services
RLER 100% 1%
REMH
HEERR %
Satellite television 70% £9,831,424
broadcasting
BEER 70% 9,831,424 545
ek

2| ®
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20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

Details of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2004 were as

follows: (Continued)

Place and date of

Name incorporation
AL
2R WERAH
Phoenix Global British Virgin
Television Limited Islands
8 October 2001
BERRER RERUES
BRAH ZTT-F
+ANR
Phoenix Glow Limited British Virgin
Islands
14 March 2001
BEzXERAT RERUES
—ET-%
=A+mA
Phoenix Satellite British Virgin
Television Islands
Investments (BVI) 2 January 2001
Limited
Phoenix Satelite RERXHS
Television “ET-F
Investments TS
(BVI) Limited
Guofeng On-line PRC
(Beijing) 18 April 2000
Information
Technology
Company Limited
BBER RS HE
RilrERAR ZZTTF
MA+NA
Phoenix Film and PRC
Television (Shenzhen) 6 March 2000
Company Limited
BEEZHE (R HE
BRAR ZZTTE
=AKA
Shenzhen Wutong Shan PRC
Television 31 July 2001
Broadcasting Limited
AYI I FH
BHKE 235
BRAR +tA=1+-H

Place of
operation

BB

British Virgin
Islands

RERX
#E

British Virgin
Islands
EREX
#B

British Virgin
Islands

ABEK

G

PRC

i

PRC

HE

PRC

i

20. B AR Al X (&)
HisE - (88)

() R-ZEEMF+-_A=+—HHHBAHF
BT - (&)

Percentage Issued and

of equity fully paid

interest held share capital/

Principal activities by the Group registered capital

AEEfE ERIRARE

gy d &/

FTEEY Bl HEA

Investment 100% US$1
holding

REER 100% 1%

Provision of 100% US$1
agency services

KR 100% 1%L
s

Dormant 100% US$1

TmEZ 100% %7t

Internet services 94.3% 1S$500,000

R ERT 94.3% 500,000%7T

Ancillary services 60% HK$10,000,000
for programme
production

FEESE 60% 10,000,0007%7T
RS

Programme 54% RMB5,000,000
production

RS 54% 5,000,000A K%



20.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(a)  Phoenix Satellite Television (B.V.l.) Holding Limited
is directly held by the Company, while all other
subsidiaries are indirectly held by the Company
through Phoenix Satellite Television (B.V.1.) Holding
Limited.

(b)  Phoenix Chinese News & Entertainment Limited has
a financial accounting year of 30 June 2004 which
is not coterminous with the Group. Management
accounts for the year ended 31 December 2004
have been provided for the purpose of the
preparation of the consolidated accounts.

Amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and has no fixed repayment terms.

The Company has undertaken to provide necessary
financial resources to support the future operations of
the subsidiaries. The Directors are of the opinion that the
underlying value of the subsidiaries was not less than the
carrying amount of the subsidiaries as at 31 December
2004.

Pursuant to an agreement dated 29 October 2003 entered
into by the Group and Oasiscity (see note 16), it was
agreed between the Group and Oasiscity that significant
influence over the operational and financial decisions on
Real Properties and J&YIBIEE 2B FR 2 7 should pass
on 29 October 2003. Accordingly, Real Properties and
FYIBEEXARAF were not accounted for as
associated companies of the Group since 29 October
2003.

Hiat : (?E)

(a) BEHREEBERARAAAFE
BRA - MAAEMHEARRR
AAREBREEFREEARAR
PERE

(b) Phoenix Chinese News &
Entertainment Limited # 8f Bt 4E &
RZTZTWFAA=1H - BEAE
ljrﬂfﬁx o RLAR BIAR & B TS TRk
MeCREHE_ZSTNF+ A
=T HIEFEZEEMBIRE -

(i) EUHMEARSEREER R REE

(iii) $ ﬁﬁﬁ%fﬁ%%%ﬁﬁuihwg

ARIRRE §$p% B B2 m1 Y

g¢%@rﬁmm§ RZZZTE+
:H£+fam%@@o

(iv) $EJ§$%£ﬁ10asiscity<ir%ﬁ‘£16)7‘f€:
T=F+ -+ NBI 0 A%
léﬁiOamscnyﬂ %‘H—Uﬁka;%& 3Bl
BEX£ERA ERMBEAEZEE
@Lmﬁﬁf?zfﬁﬂﬂ +hBE
%y At - BEEXELFIBREXAR
RAE=ZTT=F+A= +)‘LE|tETE

I VE7 5 B o Bk 2 A 7]

| ©
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21.

22.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS

Accounts payable FEST AR K

Other payables and accruals H fth FE < 5XIB R FE ST SR IE

The ageing analysis of the accounts payable is as follows:

0 - 30 days 0230H
31 - 60 days 31£260H
61 — 90 days 61290H
91 - 120 days 91£120H
Over 120 days 1208 A E

PENSION OBLIGATIONS

The Group operates a number of defined contribution
pension schemes in accordance with the respective
subsidiaries’ local practices and regulations. The Group
is obligated to contribute funding to these plans at various
funding rates of the employees’ salaries. The assets of
which are generally held in separate trustee administered
funds.

(@) Employees in Hong Kong are provided with a
defined contribution provident fund scheme and
the Group is required to make monthly contribution
to the scheme based on 10% of the employees’
basic salaries. Forfeited contributions are used to
offset the employer’s future contributions. For the
year ended 31 December 2004, the aggregate
amount of the employer’s contributions was
approximately HK$10,014,000 (six months ended
31 December 2003: HK$7,347,000). For the year
ended 31 December 2004, the total amount of
forfeited contributions was approximately
HK$859,000 (six months ended 31 December
2003: HK$145,000).

CENERNR - HtEARBERE

it & E

2004 2003
—gEME  —TT=F
HK$'000 HK$'000

FRT T

11,615 8,834
153,463 87,598
165,078 96,432

FERBRREV AR ER DA AN TS

2004 2003
—EENE —TE=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
6,851 4,559
2 1,226
468 659
343 224
1,242 2,166
11,615 8,834

2 RHREHEME

AREERIBEEME R B E B FI AR
EEZHFRETENRS - AEEER
FRESHFMAO TR KA S5t S
TEH R o WEABINEE —RBBIL
ERATEBESRE -

(a) AEEARBEERETEHINA
T2 Wizl B EARFEA10%
& BYEHEER o R UEHESR T A
WARERBNER - HE=ZZT N
F+-A=+—HILEE - EEHEK
#E#910,014,000/8 7T BE-ZTZ
=F+_-_A=+—HLAHEAA :
7,347,000%57T) © HEZTTIMF 1
ZA=T—HIFE - BRRERN
HEEEAI859,0008 T (HE_ZEZT =
F+-_A=+—HBLWL~EA :
145,000 7T) °



22. PENSION OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group and are managed by
independent professional fund managers.

Since 1 December 2000, the employees in Hong
Kong can elect to join the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”). The MPF Scheme
was introduced pursuant to the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation introduced in 2000.
Under the MPF Scheme, the Group and each of
the employees make monthly contribution to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation.

Both the employer’s and the employees’
contributions are subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$20,000 for each employee.
For those employees with monthly relevant income
less than HK$5,000 since 1 February 2003, the
employees’ contributions are voluntary.

During the year ended 31 December 2004, the
aggregate amount of employer’s contributions made
by the Group to the MPF Scheme was approximately
HK$1,148,000 (six months ended 31 December
2003: HK$559,000). For the year ended 31
December 2004, the total amount of forfeited
contributions was approximately HK$84,000 (six
months ended 31 December 2003: HK$164,000).

Pursuant to the relevant local regulations of the
countries where the overseas subsidiaries of the
Group are located, these subsidiaries participate
in respective government retirement benefit
schemes and/or setting its own Schemes whereby
they are required to contribute to the Schemes to
fund the retirement benefits of the eligible
employees. Contributions made to the Schemes are
calculated either based on certain percentages of
the applicable payroll costs or fixed sums for each
employee with reference to a salary scale, as
stipulated under the requirements in the respective
countries. The Group has no further obligation
beyond the required contributions. The
contributions under the Schemes are charged to
the profit and loss account as incurred.

2. RHEEHEE (F)

NETFEINEENEARENEE
DR - WHBYEXRESKEE
# o

H-ZTZTF+_FA—HE -  &F
B B Al ARG ERTE SRS
([RiEE 58 - WESFEI TRIE
BEDEIN _FZTFRNERE - R
FRRESAGIRT AR RTEER 8]

AEE RS EEFANHKSEEA
BH5% °

BIREEMENTARRLERAE
BEFHBBWA20,000/87T ° B
=Rt B%EEE
RABBWADIE 0008 - BEHN
R TIE BRI

REZE-_TZTNFE+-_A=+—H1t
FERN  AEBIRERESHEIFE
BB = 5K 4A 58 491,148,00078 70
BE_TT=FFT-A=t+—AIt
<& A : 559,000/87T) - HE-Z
TNE+—A=+—HIEE L
IRy oR IR £ SR AR EE4984,000/8 7T
BE_TF=FF=A=t—-AIt
7NE A : 164,000/&7T) ©

RIS EESN B A R PIERER A
BHABMRL - HEHBLARSES
B BATR A ERE 8% S BT
VAR E BB REMEARIEAR
B3 A8 BB EBRRINETIE
B - AR BIVEL R HFRTIR
BEMHE  RIBERNHERADN
ETADLHBREFRKE - HES
BENSHEAE - RATZAHRSN - K
SEWEE—HHREE - RIZEH
SHEWEH RN E LR B BaRAC
BE o
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23.

24.

SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:

Ordinary share of
HK$0.1 each

Issued and fully paid:
Beginning of year/period

Exercise of share options

End of year/period

SHARE OPTIONS

HBIE -
BREE1ET
LBk
BRITRAR
EH),/ 44
B

FIR /B

23. B &

As at 31 December 2004
R-2EME+=A=+-A

As at 31 December 2003
WZZE=F+-A=1+—H

Number of shares Amount  Number of shares Amount

R # kix-c} e Eia-

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

10,000,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000,000 1,000,000

4,931,730,000 493,173 4,931,730,000 493,173

5,066,000 507 - -

4,936,796,000 493,680 4,931,730,000 493,173
24. BB AR FE

The Company has several share option schemes under
which it may grant options to employees of the Group
(including Executive Directors of the Company) to
subscribe for shares of the Company. Options are granted
and exercisable in accordance with the terms set out in
the relevant schemes. Options granted are not recognised

AABIRASEREEERTS - RIEEtEIR
AAEENES (BEARBWRHITES)
BT REE AR BB EIRE - PR
HY R SCHE B 125 RS T 2B DI BV ISR T T ©
PR H BB AT TR 7 @ AR B K
MIFRRIER ©

in the financial statements of the Group until they are

exercised.

Movements of share options during the year ended 31

HE—TTMF—A=+—BILEER

December 2004 were as follows: HREAREE BN T
Lapsed as a
Granted Exercised result of
Subscription Beginning of during during termination of
Date of grant Exercise period price year the year the year employment  End of year
HESER
BHAH TSR %Eﬁ% 4 ERRH FRITHR [iES: FR
HK
BT
14 June 2000 14 June 2001 to 1.08 45,928 000 - (4,708,000) (243,000) 40,972,000
13 June 2010
—TZT 225 ATEAZE
~ATEA “T-ZFxAT=H
15 February 2001 15 February 2002 to 1.99 1,700,000 - - - 1,700,000
14 February 2011
—TTf ZTTE_ATRAZE
ZAt+AA “F—%-f+@EA
10 August 2001 10 August 2002 to 113 12,160,000 = (120,000) - 12,040,000
9 August 2011
—ET-F ZZZ-E\ATHE
NATAH “Z—%\ANA
20 December 2002 20 December 2003 to 0.79 2,468,000 - (233,000) - 2,230,000
19 December 2012
—TECE “EE-ET-ACTHE
TZAZTH “Z-—F+ZAThA
62,256,000 - (5,066,000) (243000) 56,942,000




25. RESERVES
Group

Movements in reserves of the Group during the period/

year were as follows:

At 1 July 2003

Exchange differences arising
on translation of the
financial statements of
foreign subsidiaries

Loss attributable to
shareholders

At 31 December 2003

Exchange differences arising
on translation of the
financial statements of
foreign subsidiaries

Exercise of share options

Profit attributable to
shareholders

At 31 December 2004

25. B
REE

AEEFR/ BROEFELBOT -

Group
r5E
Share Exchange Accumulated
premium reserve deficit Total
R EE B 5 i 2EER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FA7T FAT FA7T
RZZTZE=F+H—-H 824,839 801 (573,605) 252,035
BREBINE DA
EipEses
EER
BN R = 78 - 78
RREGER
= = (38,866) (38,866)
R-FF=F1_H
Sor—s 824,839 879 (612,471) 213,247
BEBHHELR
MBHRE
BEEH
ERES - 1,325 - 1,325
TRERE 4,902 - - 4,902
R R EAL A
- - 150,494 150,494
R-ZENE+=A
Er=F 829,741 2,204 (461,977) 369,968

@
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25. RESERVES (Continued)

26.

Company
Movements in the reserves of the Company during the
period/year were as follows:

At 1 July 2003 RZZEZ=FtH—H

BCR (G E1R

Loss attributable to shareholders
At 31 December 2003

fTiEiB IR E

Exercise of share options

Loss attributable to shareholders R EREMLEE
At 31 December 2004

Note:

Pursuant to Section 34 of the Companies Law (Revised) of the
Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company,
share premium of the Company is available for distribution to
shareholders. As at 31 December 2004, in the opinion of the
Directors, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders, comprising the share premium account and

accumulated deficit, amounted to approximately
HK$788,780,000 (2003: HK$784,315,000).

DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred taxation for the year ended 31 December 2004
are calculated in full on temporary differences under the
liability method using a principal taxation rate of 17.5%
(2003: 17.5%).

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry
forwards to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group has unrecognised tax losses of
HK$496,000,000 as at 31 December 2004 (2003:
HK$548,000,000) to carry forward against future taxable
income. Included in the unrecognised tax losses,
approximately HK$485,000,000 (2003:
HK$529,000,000) have no expiry date and the remaining
balance will expire at various dates up to and including
2022.

25. & (&)

EING
AARER, BROEERBOT ;

R=ZFT=F+=-F=+—H

R-ZERF+-A=t—-A

Company
KAT
Share Accumulated
premium deficit Total
IR E1E REEE wst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
824,839 (40,182) 784,657
= (342) (342)
824,839 (40,524) 784,315
4,902 - 4,902
= (437) (437)
829,741 (40,961) 788,780
Kzt

26.

RAEF S B SN AR (EIEE]) F34ERAR
BEHBER  ARRAMBRMDEENES /ﬁﬂx
RHe-R_TETWMFE+-_A=+—H0 R
A AMES IR FREAARD Wﬁﬁ(aﬁﬂmm
BRK 275 /5518) #9788,780,000/8 T(—TZ=

4 : 784,315,00087T) °

iE FE B 18
HE-_ZZTNFE+_A=1+—HILFEXN
EREFBEREAEINEREER 1%
FEMEAT5%(ZTE=F : 17.5%) 1E
2EETE o

EIEFTS R E E Thh T v FiTE RSB 1
ﬁﬁﬁ '|&tAT§E‘s£‘aB%KrEE%%‘E%IJ

SE 2 BB EAm AR - ASER=F
$E¢+_Hf+ A2 KRR IEEE
#/496,000,00087L (ZET =4 -
548,000,000/ 7T) + T4 85 LA SHR A g
ABWA  RAERZBBEEEAN - 4
485,000,000 8. (=2 =F :
529,000,000 7T) I EEIHA B - MekEEH
REBEEZZT_—F (B81E%F) 2% @A
EIHf -



26. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 26. EEERE (&)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior RER/ HRNELEHBEENRBEE
to offsetting of balances within the same taxation (FEHKSH R — BBt [mAY A ER AT 20T -

jurisdiction) during the year/period is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities EEBEEE
Accelerated Purchased programme

tax depreciation and film rights Total

MERERE BAGEREYME fazt
Six months Six months Six months
Year ended ended  Year ended ended  Year ended ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003

Hz HE #z e #z #z
CEEQME -T3-F ZEEME -2E-F CEEmME -E%
t=B=t-A +=A=1+-H t=B=t-A +ZA=1-A t=B=t-R tZA=1-
LEE 1R LLEE It~ A LLEE A
HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS0O0  HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT AT TAT AL TET AT

At the beginning of the year/period Eq/51) 60 113 683 2,111 743 2,204
Credited to profit and loss account STABRE (30) (53) (683) (1,428) (713) (1,481)
At the end of the year/period ER /5 30 60 - 683 30 743
Deferred tax assets EEHREEE
Accelerated Purchased programme
Tax losses tax depreciation and film rights Total
b i IERERE EAfEREYRE it
Six months Six months Six months Six months
Year ended ended  Year ended ended  Year ended ended  Year ended ended

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003 2004 2003
Bz B2 Bz B2 Bz B2 L B2
tgEmE 35S TE2EME CR5SF CEEmE D8RS CEERME R
tZR=t-8 t2A=t-B f2B=t-R t2A=t-A t=A=t-B tA=t-B T2B=t-R fzA=1-A
LL5E iyl LEE iyl g:3:5 IR e AER
HK$'000  HKSO00  HK$'000  HKSOO0  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00
FAn T i T FAn T A1 T

Atthe beginning o the year/period /40 (3,547) (5.967) 2,804 3,666 - 7 (743) (2,224
Charged to profit and loss account TAERE 284 240 429 (862) = M 113 1481
Atthe end of the year/period i/ (3,263) (3547) 3233 280 - - (30) (74

@

Notes to the Accounts Bf % 3R % Ff 5%



-|®

a

Notes to the Accounts B % ¥R = Fff =

27. ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION ON 27.

28.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2004, the net current assets of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$680,766,000
(2003: HK$564,191,000). On the same date, the total
assets less current liabilities were approximately
HK$870,515,000 (2003: HK$713,266,000).

NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 28.

STATEMENT

Reconciliation of profit/(loss) from operations to net

cash inflow/(outflow) from operations

Profit/(loss) from operations
Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortisation of purchased programme
and film rights and other charges
Other income, net
Exchange gain, net
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Reimbursement of operating and
selling, general and administrative
expenses by Oasiscity
Increase in accounts receivable, net
Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Decrease in inventories
Increase in amounts due from
related companies
Decrease in self-produced programmes
Increase in accounts payable,
other payables and accruals
Decrease in deferred income
Decrease in amounts due to
related companies

NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW)
FROM OPERATIONS

REEERBERCHMBUKE

35

R-FZTOE+=-A=t—8H" ZJ&ElEﬁ
MENE EFEXI680,766,000 8 T (ZFF

—E 564,191,000 7T) °

REE - ﬁ'ﬁ

ERnENAE4870,515,000/8 T (Z&F=E
=4 : 713,266,000/ 7T) °

REEETREXRKE

ERA (BB BEEEBRERA

(/mtﬂ)ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁ
Six months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2004 2003
BE_ZTZENE BHE-_TT=F
e = = el A ] e e b 2 e ]
ILFE 1E75{E A
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
(note 32)
(K17%32)
SRR (B8 138,536 (44,579)
EEEERE 24,649 10,565
BARE - ERER

Hoh A 2 4 85 23,739 16,150
HA WA FFE 8,247 5,143
e 5, oo 3 1,927 834
HEBTEEBE 108 87
OasiscityfiiZ 2212

BERIEE - R

RATHR X - (3,596)
FEW AR TR AN (65,959) (2,240)
TNHIE - BER

A e Y SRIE S N (73,354) (5,173)
FERD 436 1,430
JE s BB A R ERIEE AN

(284) =
EEEEb R 685 10,180
FERBRTR « HAbERFRIA K&

FERTERIEIE AN 68,646 2,676
TEFEW AR (13,506) (15,213)
FE 1< BAES A R IR

(1,897) (1,905)
BEEBEBSHAN
(f ) F88 111,973 (25,641)




29.

30.

BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2004, the Group had banking
facilities amounted to approximately HK$18,700,000
(2003: HK$18,400,000) of which approximately
HK$12,600,000 (2003: HK$10,800,000) was unutilised.
The facilities are covered by counter indemnities from
the Group.

As at 31 December 2004, deposits of approximately
HK$3,700,000 (2003: HK$3,400,000) were pledged
with a bank to secure a banking guarantee given to the
landlord of a subsidiary.

COMMITMENTS

(@) Programme and film rights acquisition
As at 31 December 2004, the Group had aggregate
outstanding programme and film rights related
commitments of approximately HK$74,373,000
(2003: HK$97,302,000) of which all (2003:
HK$94,437,000) was in respect of a film rights
acquisition agreement with STAR TV Filmed
Entertainment Limited (“STAR Filmed”) extending
to 27 August 2008. Total programme and film rights
related commitments are analysed as follows:

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not
later than five years

i
X W
m

29.

30.

RITEE
R-ZZEMFE+_A=1+—H  ~EEH
$FITIEE$4918,700,0008 T (ZF2=

£:18,400,000%T) B FEL
12,600,000 B L (ZEZT =4 :
10,800,000/ 7T) HABA - BEEEEH

AREE R RIERIEEM

RZBFWNE+ZA=+—0 ©
3,700,000/ 7T (ZFF =4 : 3,400,000
AT BEMTIRT - ERGET —HED
AIEERIRITIELR ©

A e

(a) aﬁxﬁﬁa&%ﬁékﬂﬁ
REZZTWF+=—A=1+—0 ' &%
BB E REEMREN T EITAE
BEAA)T74,373,00087C (= 2:
£ :97,302,000/87T) ' EHE
(ZZZT =% : 04,437, ooo/%m
EASTAR TV Filmed Entertainment
Limited ([STAR Filmed |) & sT8E&
BEEREREEH - ZipRtES
—EZ)\ENA=_++tH - - BB

MBI RIERESTT ¢

2004 2003
—gPmE  —FTT=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT T
20,343 23,148
54,030 74,154
74,373 97,302

@
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30. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(b) Service charges

As at 31 December 2004, the Group had total
committed service charges payable to Satellite
Television Asian Region Limited (“STARL”) of
approximately HK$62,741,000 (2003:
HK$105,103,000) in respect of a service agreement
expiring on 30 June 2006. Total committed service
charges payable to STARL are analysed as follows:

Not later than one year TER—F
Later than one year and not BR—FETNERAT

later than five years

As at 31 December 2004, the Group had committed
service fee receivable from Asia Television Limited
(“ATV") of approximately HK$1,953,000 (2003:
HK$3,246,000) in respect of the provision of
technical support services and equipment to ATV
for the operation of the ATV Home Channel (U.S.
version) in the United States. Total future minimum
service fees receivable are analysed as follows:

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not
later than five years

i
X W
m

30. A E (&)
(b) MRIKEE
R-TBENFE+—_A=+—0 K&
ERR =TS ENA=1THERN
R EN FTREERER A A
([STARLJ) Hy iR 7% & 4962,741,000
BT (ZEZ =4 : 105,103,000 %
JT) ° FEATSTARLHYARTS & F AdE4E

RO
2004 2003
—EENE —EE=f
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
41,780 41,846
20,961 63,257
62,741 105,103

R-ZBEMNFE+—A=+—01 ' K&
B R RS 1B AR AS B 2% T 2
BEAR AR ([ERNER]) AEEE
EEDNERAE & I8E GERMR)
mMEKGZMNEESHOREZELD
1,953,000 L (=BT =4
3,246,000 7T) ° 7 SR K e LK AR
BEAEGESNOAT

2004 2003
—EENF —TE=f
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
1,302 1,298
651 1,948
1,953 3,246




30. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Operating lease

As at 31 December 2004, the Group had rental
commitments of approximately HK$32,062,000
(2003: HK$32,875,000) under various operating
leases extending to September 2011. Total future
minimum lease payments payable under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Not later than one year TER—F

Later than one year and not BN —FENERAT
later than five years

Later than five years BRRF

Capital commitment

On 5 August 2004, the Group entered into an
agreement with 3t 522 & to form a sino-foreign
joint venture, Ik RFEIZEEEEFR AT, in the
PRC. The joint venture will focus on developing
advertising businesses in radio broadcasting
industry. Pursuant to the agreement, the Group shall
inject approximately HK$12,900,000 (equivalent to
RMB13,500,000) for a 45% shareholding in this
joint venture, of which approximately
HK$11,500,000 (equivalent to RMB12,000,000)
shall be paid within three months from the date of
issue of the business license of the joint venture
and the remaining amount shall be paid within
thirty-six months from the said date. The business
license of the joint venture was issued in January
2005 and approximately HK$11,500,000 was paid
by the Group to this joint venture in January 2005.

30. EE (&)

(c)

RZZEZMFE+—_A=1+—H &%
EREBEZREHNE —T——F AN
ZIAR LT R /RAEYEHI32,062,000
BT (ZEZ=4 : 32,875,000%
TORMES - RETARENEEME
B KARBEEZBSEEINWT

2004 2003
—gEmE  —TI=
HK$'000 HK$'000

FRT T

12,647 10,961

16,181 17,285

3,234 4,629

32,062 32,875
BAEM

R-ZEZENARR - AEERE
REB ARG s + AR BRI
INEEDE - RRFEEEEER
NE] c ZEECERBTERRESS
BREIT¥ECESER - BERE -
SEBERZEEDEZI5%MHEE
& #912,900,000 770 (FHER A R
13,500,0007t) * EH11,500,0007%
TSR ARE12,000,000787T) A
REEHA &2 &SR A HeAT
=EARZAT - #R5EER it A HAE
AETAERALN - GEE &
¥HRER_ZTTRF—AEL M
AEBER =TT RF—AXN
11,500,000/ 7T °
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30. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(e) Other commitments

As at 31 December 2004, the Group had the
following additional significant operating

commitments:

Details of commitments

R

Provision of transponder, uplinking,
encoding and electronic programme
guide services

RUEEE @ LEE N7
REFEHA EHRE

Provision of data transmission services

RESEEARE

Provision of news and datafeed services

RUFEREERTS

Provision of office management services

REEAZERRS

Provision of transponder rental services
REELR RS
Provision of channel leasing services
RESRERERE
Provision of optic fibre
transmission services
Rt BB R
Provision of programming services
FR{k6 A IR
Provision of agency services
RERERS
Provision of programme
co-ordination services

AR B

Provision of construction
engineering services

RERETRAN

Provision of performance services

AR

Provision of management services

RUEERG

Provision of consultancy and
design services

FRHRR R S

British Sky Broadcasting Limited
(“BSkyB")

British Sky Broadcasting

Limited ([BSkyBl)
PCCW-HKT Network Services Limited
PCCW-HKT Network Services Limited

The Associated Press
Television News Limited

The Associated Press
Television News Limited

Rhine Office Investments Ltd,
Elbe Office Investments Ltd.
and Hutchison Hotel HK Ltd.

Rhine Office Investments Ltd,
Elbe Office Investments Ltd.
and Hutchison Hotel HK Ltd.

MEBRRRAERA

NEBRBROBRAT

Charter Communications

Charter Communications

China Netcom (USA) Operations Limited

China Netcom (USA) Operations Limited

Exclusive Production Limited
Exclusion Production Limited
FEESRIESHEING
REMERNFLRERAT
KR eRPEELLR

HAGHPES AR
PRERRERHIAR

AR EERAT R
(V&

Rz
MITARNFERARAD
MITARNFERARAA
Ideal Systems Asia Pacific Ltd

Ideal Systems Asia Pacific Ltd

30.

EiE(E)
(e) HftbEiE

R-ZZUE+—A=+—H &%

B8 A A N EME 2L R E AR
%
2004 2003
-930% =t 5

Later than

Not later one year and
than one not later than Total Total
year five years commitment commitment

‘ EH-ER
TER-F TERLE REAE RS
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TAT
2,601 - 2,601 6,975
3,066 1,643 4,709 2,418
1,037 145 1,182 1,848
2,401 1,300 3,701 6,102
- - - 1,679
- - - 1,463
1,551 - 1,551 651
- - - 405
- - - 250
- - - 249
967 - 967 -
940 - 940 -
741 169 910 -
855 - 855 -
14,159 3,257 17,416 22,040




31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS M. EXRBEALIRS

Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the WAEEGE N (EEkEE) @A
Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise REHB B REBEREREEEATE
significant influence over the parties in making financial 7 BRI SMEARBEREEALT
and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the SEIEREATE S - ABBEALTHEA
Group and the parties are subject to common significant HEAREEBHE - BEALTAIREARE
influence. Related parties may be individuals or entities. S -
In the normal course of business, the Group had the ERTRHEGEHEA - NEE Y EHEEEA T+
following significant transactions with the related parties: ETTIEERS :
Six months
Year ended ended
31 December 31 December
2004 2003
Bz-3ENE HEZTZ-F
t=A=t-A e ]
LFE 17318 A
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TEn T
Service charges paid/payable to STARL [FISTARLXZ A /B VRIS B a,b 52,917 22,116
Commission for advertising sales and [STARL 214/ FEfT BB 44
marketing services paid/payable to STARL kisakEREAS a,c 944 1,79
Commission for international subscription sales  FISTARLZ{ /e Y ERRR AT R 355
and marketing services paid/payable to STARL RS H#ERBEES a,d 2,645 1,358
Sales of decoder devices to STARL [FISTARL S E RIS 28 ae 64 24
Film licence fees paid/payable to STAR Filmed ~ FISTAR Filmedsff /MBS sF A & af 20,337 10,172
Purchase of broadcast operations and FSTARLEEE RREERTI2EM
engineering equipment from STARL a8 98 1,442
Programme licence fees paid/payable to AIVE  FENBRAESIN/EROGEZAE  h,i 709 2,250
Service charges paid/payable to ATV RENERZN/ BAOREE hj 790 360
Service charges received/receivable fom ATV RZMERUER/ EUBHRES h, k 1,402 651
Service charges paid/payable to Fox [Fox /M MRBE l, m 3,792 2,070
Service charges paid/payable to BSkyB [BSkyB {1 /BT VRIS & no 5,012 2534
Service charges received/receivable [AIDIRECTV, Inc. ([DIRECTV)
from DIRECTV, Inc. (“DIRECTV") B/ e R PG 2,309 1,005
Programme licence fees to [MSGL Entertainment Limited
SGL Entertainment Limited (ISGL Entertainment |)
(“SGL Entertainment”) SGEEETE- a,r 1,182 =

Notes to the Accounts Bf % 3R % Ff 5%
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Notes:

The Directors have confirmed that all of the above related party
transactions have been carried out in the normal course of
business of the Group.

(a)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

(g)

STARL, STAR Filmed, SGL Entertainment and other STAR
TV group companies are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
STAR Group Limited, which owns 100% of Xing Kong
Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd., a substantial shareholder of
the Company.

Service charges paid/payable to STARL covering a wide
range of technical services provided to the Group are
charged based on the terms of the service agreement
dated 29 May 2003. The summary of the terms of the
service agreement is set out in the section headed “New
Star Services Agreement” of the circular of the Company
dated 10 June 2003 (the “Circular”). Either fixed fees or
variable fees are charged depending on the type of
services utilised.

The commission for advertising sales and marketing
services paid/payable to STARL is based on 15% (six
months ended 31 December 2003: 4%-15%) of the net
advertising income generated and received by it on behalf
of the Group after deducting the relevant amount of the
third party agency fees.

The commission for international subscription sales and
marketing services paid/payable to STARL is based on
15% (six months ended 31 December 2003: 15%) of the
subscription fees generated and received by it on behalf
of the Group.

Sales of decoder devices to STARL are charged based on
terms mutually agreed upon between both parties.

The film licence fees are charged in accordance with a
film rights acquisition agreement with STAR Filmed.

Purchases of broadcast operations and engineering
equipment from STARL are charged in accordance with
the equipment purchase agreement.

ATVE is a wholly-owned subsidiary of ATV which is
considered to be a connected party to the Company
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. Mr. LIU, Changle and
Mr. CHAN, Wing Kee beneficially own 93.3% and 6.7%
respectively of Today’s Asia Limited, which indirectly owns
approximately 46% of ATV as at 31 December 2004. Mr.
CHAN, Wing Kee also owns 95% of Dragon Sheen
Holdings Limited which holds 16.25% indirect interest in
ATV as at 31 December 2004. He also owns 80% of
Dragon Goodwill International Limited, which has
completed its acquisition of 32.75% interests in ATV on
25 July 2003.

&l

EXBEALTXRE (&)
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BEEDHER
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(a)

STARL  STAR Filmed » SGL
Entertainment R EE £ ERE A R
iﬁ%%”@lﬁ%@ﬁﬁﬂ@i%%é%%@

H¥#EABXing Kong Chuan Mei Group
CmUd%$ﬂﬂI%%$Wﬂm%%
%o

FISTARLX 4,/ FE S MR TS B B FE R AN S
B Z T EENMTIRTS - IRIG B TR
EAf TR=FH A = TN BRI ZHRRIE
BT A IRTS E’Jﬂ%?ﬂﬁ%x%ﬁ’\ﬁ
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[MSTARLSH%E By FR TS B8 28 1 TURIR & 75 [A)

BRGRRKE

BT 0] B TYIRIEEASTAR Filmeds] SZHY
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AR B M ERAI16.25% R o
1% 74 BDragon Goodwill International
Limited#I80% &% + M Dragon Goodwill
International Limited R =ZTZ=FtH=
+RBZEKKERMEIRRN32.75%
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(0

(k)

(1

(m)

(n)

Pursuant to a programme licensing agreement dated 29
May 2003, the programme licence fees paid/payable to
ATVE with respect to a list of programmes as stipulated in
the schedule of the agreement are charged at a fixed fee
or fees to be mutually agreed. The summary of the terms
of the agreement are set out in the section headed “ATV
Programme Licensing Agreement” of the Circular.

Service charges paid/payable to ATV cover news footage
and data transmission services provided to the Group
which are charged based on terms mutually agreed upon
between both parties.

Service charges received/receivable from ATV cover the
following services provided to ATV which are charged
based on terms specified in a service agreement:

- the use of floor area for the location of receivers;

- the use of master control room equipment and

transmission equipment (including maintenance for
daily wear and tear);

- fibre optic transmission; and
- video tapes administration and playout services.

Fox is an associate of Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co.,
Ltd., a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Service charges paid/payable to Fox cover the following
services provided to the Group which are charged based
on the terms specified in a service agreement:

- granting of non-exclusive and non-transferable
licence to subscribe for Fox's news service;

- leasing of office space and access to workspace,
subject to availability; and

- accessing Fox’s camera hook up at the United
Nations, interview positions in various places in the
United States and live shots from Fox’ satellite truck
positions for events that Fox is already covering,
subject to availability.

BSkyB is 36.3% owned by News Holdings Limited
(formerly known as The News Corporation Limited)
(“NHL") which indirectly owns 100% of Xing Kong Chuan
Mei Group Co., Ltd., a substantial shareholder of the
Company.
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The News Holding Limited (8% [ The
News Corporation Limited ) (TNHL]) #
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Mei Group Co., Ltd.A)100%# % ©
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31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

3125

g131

(o)

(r)

Service charges paid/payable to BSkyB cover the following
services provided to the Group which are charged based
on terms specified in the service agreements:

- transponder rental;

- uplinking services; and

- encoding and electronic programme guide services.
DIRECTV is an associate of NHL which indirectly owned
100% of Xing Kong Chuan Mei Group Co., Ltd.

Service charges received/receivable from DIRECTV are

charged based on terms specified in a service agreement.

Programme license fees to SGL Entertainment are charged
based on terms specified in a license agreement

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain of the comparative figures have been reclassified
to conform with the current year presentation.

APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS
The accounts were approved by the Board of Directors
on 10 March 2005.
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS #HmREa¥E

Results
Revenue
Operating expenses

Selling, general and
administrative expenses

Profit/(loss) from operations

Other income/(expenses), net

Profit/(loss) before taxation
and minority interests

Taxation

Profit/(loss) before
minority interests

Minority interests

Profit/(loss) attributable to
shareholders

LN
REEH

HE KL
ThE

mewsl/ (BR)
2N/ (BR) 58

PR RO BB R LA
BN/ (B8

HE

Fr BRI A
BN/ (B

DR EL

Six months
Year ended ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 30 June
2004 2003 2003 2002 2001
“ZEME ZZT=F ZZT=F S 2 ZZT-%
+ZA=+-B +=ZA=1-H ~A=TH ~A=TH ~A=TH
IEEE <8R IHFE ILFE ILFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fix Fhr T T T
(As restated)
(f=5)

1,113,048 350,347 709,970 685,043 713,687
(828,449) (326,318) (661,238) (709,700) (579,421)
(146,063) (68,608) (142,065) (140,356) (132,974)

138,536 (44.,579) (93,333) (165,013) 1,292
17,518 7,958 21,631 (29,216) 50,566
156,054 (36,621) (71,702) (194,229) 51,858
(4,826) (2,559) (3811) (3,141) (1,356)
151,228 (39,180) (75,513) (197,370) 50,502
(734) 314 3,150 (2,346) 3,734
150,494 (38,866) (72,363) (199,716) 54,236
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CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HREEERERE

As at 31 December As at 30 June
Mt=A=t-H BWAB=1H
2004 2003 2003 2002 2001
“EEME Z%%= —%%= S a2 S Sl 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fix Fhr T Fhr T
Total assets BESE 1,082,592 878,039 932,603 997,806 1,170,170
Total liabilities BEBE (212,107) (165,516) (180,563) (171,054) (148,814)
Minority interests YRR (6,837) (6,103) (6,832) (9,982) (5,019)
Shareholders' equity REER 863,648 706,420 745,208 816,770 1,016,337




CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM™) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE
OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE™)

GEM has been eslablished as a markel designed 1o accommodate companies o which a high
investment risk may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither &
track record of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there
iy be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business
sectors of countries im which the companies operate. Prospective invesiors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision 1o invest
only efter due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated imestors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a sk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility then securities traded on the Main
Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM,

The principal means af information dissemination on GEM is publication on the internat wahsite
operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid
announcemenlts in gazetted newspapers, Accordingly, prospective investors should note that
they need to have access to the GEM website in order to obtain up-to-date information on
GEM-listed issuers.
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Phoenix Satellite Television Holdings Limited
Sth Floor, One Harbourfront, 18 Tak Fung Street
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel: BS2 2621 9888

Fax: 852 2621 9898

Wehsite: http.ffwww, phoenixtv.com
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